LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
Date:

Thursday 8 April 2021

Time:

7.00 pm

Venue:

Microsoft Teams – please click here

Copies of agendas, reports, minutes and other attachments for the Council’s meetings are available on
the Lambeth website. www.lambeth.gov.uk/moderngov

Members of the Committee
Councillor Fred Cowell, Councillor Martin Tiedemann, Councillor Linda Bray, Councillor Emma Nye,
Councillor Irfan Mohammed, Councillor Rezina Chowdhury, Councillor Ibrahim Dogus, Councillor Joshua
Lindsey, Councillor Pauline George and Councillor Becca Thackray
Members Required for this meeting will be: Councillor Liz Atkins, Councillor Fred Cowell, Councillor
Irfan Mohammed

Substitute Members
Councillor John Kazantzis, Councillor Jennie Mosley, Councillor Matthew Bennett, Councillor Andy
Wilson, Councillor Danial Adilypour, Councillor Donatus Anyanwu, Councillor Claire Holland, Councillor
Jon Davies, Councillor Liz Atkins, Councillor Marcia Cameron and Councillor Timothy Windle

Further Information
If you require any further information or have any queries please contact:
Nazyer Choudhury, Telephone: 020 7926 0028; Email: nchoudhury@lambeth.gov.uk

Published on: Monday 29 March 2021

Queries on reports
Please contact report authors prior to the meeting if you have questions on the reports or wish to inspect
the background documents used. The contact details of the report author are shown on the front page of
each report.

@LBLdemocracy on Twitter http://twitter.com/LBLdemocracy or use #Lambeth
Lambeth Council – Democracy Live on Facebook http://www.facebook.com/

How to access the meeting
This meeting will be held in accordance with Section 78 of the Coronavirus Act 2020 and the related
Regulations which details that members of the public and press be provided access to the meeting
through remote means, such as video conferencing and live streaming as provided by the link below.

For Members of the Public
This is a Microsoft Teams Live Event meeting. If you are new to Microsoft Teams, clicking the above link
take you to the meeting page where you will be prompted to download the app or watch on the web
instead. Please follow the instructions to watch on the web. On doing so, you can join our live event
anonymously.

For Members of the Committee
Please refer to the joining instructions you have already received – do not use the link above.

Digital engagement
We encourage people to use Social Media and we normally tweet from most Council meetings. To get
involved you can tweet us @LBLDemocracy.

Audio/Visual Recording of meetings
Everyone is welcome to record meetings of the Council and its Committees using whatever,
nondisruptive, methods you think are suitable. If you have any questions about this please contact
Democratic Services (members of the press please contact the Press Office). Please note that the Chair
of the meeting has the discretion to halt any recording for a number of reasons including disruption
caused by the filming or the nature of the business being conducted.
Persons making recordings are requested not to put undue restrictions on the material produced so that
it can be reused and edited by all local people and organisations on a non-commercial basis.

Representation
Ward Councillors may be contacted directly to represent your views to the Council: (details via the
website www.lambeth.gov.uk).

AGENDA

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE ORDER OF THE AGENDA MAY BE CHANGED AT THE MEETING

Page
Nos.
1

Election of Chair

2

Declaration of Pecuniary Interests
Under Standing Order 4.4, where any councillor has a Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest (as defined in the Members’ Code of Conduct (para.
4)) in any matter to be considered at a meeting of the Council, a
committee, sub-committee or joint committee, they must withdraw from
the meeting room during the whole of the consideration of that matter
and must not participate in any vote on that matter unless a
dispensation has been obtained from the Monitoring Officer.

3

Minutes

1-8

To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 18 March 2021
as a correct record of the proceedings.

4

Licensing Applications for the Grant / Review of a Premises
Licence

9 - 14

Bayo Dosunmu: Strategic Director of Resident Services
Contact: Bina Patel, Licensing Manager, 020 7926 4103
Email: bpatel@lambeth.gov.uk

4a

Quick Commerce Ltd, 10 Zennor Road Industrial Estate,
Zennor Road, London SW12 0PS (Thornton)

15 - 42

5

Consideration of Objections to Temporary Event Notices

43 – 46

5a

Cattivo, 201-207 Ferndale Road, SW9 8BA (Ferndale)

47 – 108

5b

Canova Hall, 248-250 Ferndale Road, SW9 8BQ (Ferndale)

109 - 164

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 1

Agenda Item 3

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE MINUTES
Thursday 18 March 2021 at 7.00 pm
Microsft Teams

Present:

Councillor Fred Cowell, Councillor Martin Tiedemann and Councillor
Irfan Mohammed

Apologies:

1

ELECTION OF CHAIR
MOVED by Councillor Martin Tiedemann, SECONDED by Councillor Irfan Mohammed
RESOLVED: That Councillor Fred Cowell be elected as Chair for the meeting.

2

DECLARATION OF PECUNIARY INTERESTS
None were declared.

3

MINUTES
The minutes of the meeting held on 2 February 2021 would be submitted to the next meeting of
the Licensing Sub-Committee.

4

LICENSING APPLICATIONS FOR THE GRANT / REVIEW OF A PREMISES
LICENCE

4a

CLAPHAM KEBAB, 17 CLAPHAM HIGH STREET, LONDON, SW4 7TS
(LARKHALL)
Presentation by the Licensing Officer
The Sub-Committee was informed that this was an application for a new premises licence. The
Sub-Committee’s attention was drawn to Chapters 2, 3, 8, 9, and 10 of the Statutory Guidance,
and to Sections, including Chapter 5 (Policies 1, 7 and 8) of the Statement of Licensing Policy,
as the ones particularly relevant to this application. The options available to the SubCommittee were set out in paragraph 6.2 of the report on page 20 and 21 of the agenda

Page 2
papers.
The Licensing Officer confirmed:
 This was an application for a new premises licence located in a cumulative impact
zone (CIZ) for the sale of alcohol by deliveries only for consumption off the premises.
 The hours for licensable activity sought was for the hours of 14:00 to 01:00 Sunday
to Thursday and 14:00 to 03:00 Friday and Saturday.
 The applicants’ agents had provided additional information including amended
operating hours for Thursday and a Nosie Management policy and had been
circulated to all parties.

Presentation by the applicant

The applicant, Mr Izzet Sasmaz, Mr Gokhan Sasmaz and the applicant’s agent, Mr Peter
Mayhew informed the Sub-Committee that:

 This was an application for the sale of alcohol by retail for delivery. The application
contained nothing that would attract people to the premises or the area. The sale of
alcohol would simply be added to an existing operating business.
 The application was not seeking to add any hours to the business but to simply add
alcohol to the already existing operating hours.
 The alcohol sold would be at a low ‘abv’ rate.
 The applicant had agreed to many additional conditions and although the premises
was located inside a CIZ, it was on the edge of the zone.
 The alcohol sold would be delivered outside the CIZ in any case and therefore the
application would likely attract people away from the High Street as patrons would
not have to come into the High Street for alcohol or food.
 The business had existed for 40 years and the applicants had lived in the area for
the last 30 years and had many years’ experience of operating the premises and
there had been no reported issues at the premises in the years that they had
operated.
 The applicants lived next door to the premises and had a good understanding of the
area and the issues in the area.
 The applicants had accepted the vast majority of the conditions that had been
proposed by Licensing, but could not agree to one condition regarding the use of
non-motorised bikes after 22:00 as it was not possible for the applicant to accept that
condition as they did not operate the delivery vehicles themselves.
 The applicants had proposed a noise management policy.
 In relation to the operating hours, the applicant had agreed to reduce the operating
hours on Thursday, by one hour.
 Although Licensing had proposed that the premises operated similar to an offlicence, the application was actually more similar to a hotel as alcohol would be
delivered to residents in a permanent living space.

Page 3
 Alcohol could only be bought ancillary to food.
 Alcohol would be delivered to residents who were already at home not causing any
problems.
 No objections had been received from Public Protection or residents in the area.
 Alcohol could not be brought directly from the premises.
 The low abv rate of alcohol that would be sold would solve issues of residents ‘preloading’ on alcohol.
 As the business was a delivery business, the prices of the alcohol would be higher
than that of supermarkets and local businesses in the area.

In response to questions from Members, Mr Sasmaz, Mr Gokhan Sasmaz and Mr Mayhew
informed the Sub-Committee that:

 Alcohol could only be bought ancillary to food. This had been added as a condition
on the licence.
 If an individual was unable to meet the standard requirements regarding
identification on age-restricted products, then the driver would return the item to the
business.
 If the applicant was to receive a report of a driver delivering alcohol to an underaged
individual, then they would be removed as a driver for business.
 Policies were in place and a member of staff would reiterate the three key points to a
driver on every occasion which was that alcohol was not to be sold to an intoxicated
individual, an underaged individual or at a party.
 Drivers generally operated in very specific areas and there was an emphasis on the
premises licence holder to do as much as they could to minimise risks for deliveries
being made to inappropriate individuals. The Licensing policy regarding the delivery
of alcohol recognised these issues and had made suggestions for solutions. All of
the solutions which had been put forward as conditions had been accepted by the
applicant.
 The applicant would be pleased if a driver had made a judgement call and had
decided not to deliver the item to an inappropriate individual, then a record of this
would be kept and the driver would still be paid. Drivers which did not follow the rules
would be blocked from making deliveries on behalf of the premises.
 A sticker would be placed on age-restricted products to indicate that they were age
restricted.
 There was a condition on the licence which stated that no deliveries would be made
apart from to residential or business addresses. Deliveries could not be made to any
other premises as it was against the conditions.
 It was very unlikely that people looking to become intoxicated by alcohol brought
from the premises as cheaper and stronger alcohol was available in nearby shops.
 The applicant would accept a slight change to the wording of condition 8 which
would be changed to read that alcohol deliveries “would only be made to a named
individual inside business and/or private residences and not to public or open

Page 4
spaces”.
 The applicant would also agree to an edit to condition 4 to state that records of any
deliveries made would be kept on file for a period of two months after the delivery
had been made.

Presentation by interested parties
PC Mike Constable informed the Sub-Committee that:
 He appreciated the submissions from the applicants.
 There were a lot of licensed premises and alcohol sold in the Clapham CIZ area.
 Due to the amount of alcohol that was sold in the Clapham CIZ area, it was possible
for the Sub-Committee to refuse the application based on this alone.
 Conditions had been proposed to prevent antisocial behaviour and crime in the local
area.
 There was concern regarding the continuation of alcohol consumption in the late
hours of the night.
 It was possible that people may order food and drink before going out drinking in
Clapham.
 Looking at the crime statistics, there was only a difference of 17 offences between
2019 and 2020.
 More alcohol consumption led to vulnerability.
 In relation to Deliveroo and Uber Eats drivers, he was sceptical of the delivery
drivers as there had been complaints made regarding other licensed operators.
 It was difficult to discern how a complaint could be registered if a driver was to
deliver alcohol to an underaged individual.
 It was more likely that the delivery drivers would simply make the deliveries, collect
their fee and move onto the next delivery.

In response to questions from Members, PC Constable informed the Sub-Committee that:
 Although the CIZ had to evolve, the surge in deliveries of alcoholic drinks had not
been fully considered and would have the potential to impact noise complaints.
 There could be an increase in domestic violence as alcohol consumption in the
home led to people being assaulted.
 It would be hard to for the applicants to be able to manage issues caused by
consumption of alcohol in people’s homes.
 Then may be parties held in residential areas which may become a bit too
boisterous.
 The general area had specific issues with violent disorder. This had been recorded
in 2019. There had been issues with individuals who had possessions of weapons

Page 5
such as tasers and baseball bats. There was also a residential estate nearby where
the premises was located.

Ms Pam Riley, Licensing Officer, informed the Sub-Committee that:

 Whilst the application was delivery only and there would be no direct sales from the
premises, drivers could cause a nuisance in the area.
 Following discussions with the applicant, the conditions had been revised and 16 of
the 17 conditions proposed had been accepted by the applicants.
 Licensing were content that the one remaining condition (regarding the use of nonmotorised vehicles) notbe added onto the licence.
 The applicant had submitted a further four additional conditions and licensing are
happy to accept those conditions with the exception of conditions 1 and 2, which
would be accepted with alternative wording.
 Condition 1 should be changed to read that “all sales of alcohol for consumption off
the premises must be in sealed containers only and shall not be consumed on the
premises. (Sealed containers meaning manufacturers sealing of the vessel)”.
 Condition 2 should be changed to state “alcohol shall only be sold for consumption
off the premises as ancillary to a food order for delivery only”.
 There was concern regarding the proposed operating hours as they were outside the
hours of the Licensing policy.

In response to questions from Members, Ms Riley, informed the Sub-Committee that:
 The suggested terminal hour for the sale of alcohol would be 00:00 Sunday to
Thursday and 01:00 Friday to Saturday.
 The use of motorised vehicles could negatively impact on residents living in the area.
 Due to the number of licensed premises in the area, more licensable activity was not
likely to be helpful.

The applicant was recalled to address matters arising. In response to questions from
Members, Mr Sasmaz, Mr Gokhan Sasmaz and Mr Mayhew informed the Sub-Committee that:

 There were no issues with the proposed conditions.
 It made sense for the hours of licensable activity to match the hours of late-night
refreshment.
 It was important to emphasise that the delivery business would not bring people into
the area and that the proposed licensable activity was closer to a licence operated
by a hotel.

Page 6
 There were very few businesses that had operated in the area with few problems,
but the applicant had operated in the area with no problems.
 Licensing had stated that if the conditions proposed were met, then it was likely that
there would not be an increase in street drinking and he agreed with this position.
 The applicant had received an email from Clapham BID who were happy to support
the application.

Adjournment and Decision
At 8:02pm, the Sub-Committee withdrew from the meeting together with the Legal Advisor and
Clerk to deliberate in private. The Sub-Committee had heard and considered representations
from all those who spoke. Legal advice was given to the Sub-Committee on the options open
to them and the need for any decision to be proportionate. The Sub- Committee decided to
grant the application subject to conditions.
RESOLVED: To grant the application subject to conditions.
Announcement of Decision
Members returned to the meeting and the Chair informed those present of the decision to grant
the application subject to conditions.
The Sub-Committee thanked all parties and after reviewing all the evidence, decided to grant
the licence subject to all the agreed and revised conditions settled during the meeting except
Condition 15 (regarding the use of non-motorised vehicles).

There would be a revision to condition 8 stating that alcohol deliveries “would only be
made to a named individual inside business and/or private residences and not to public
or open spaces” and that condition 4 would be changed to state that records of any
deliveries made would be kept on file for a period of two months after the sale. The
applicants’ proposed additional four conditions would be accepted with the revised
wording as proposed by Licensing. In relation to the issue regarding the operating
hours in relation to the Licensing policy, the Sub-Committee considered that granting
the application would not pose any additional pressures on the Cumulative Impact
Zone and could be managed appropriately between all parties via the conditions. The
Sub-Committee also noted that the law and primary legislation did not deal with issues
such as Deliveroo drivers and the issue was currently beyond the scope of the
Licensing Sub-Committee. The Sub-Committee felt that it had reached the most
appropriate solution.

The meeting ended at 8:14pm.

CHAIR
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
Tuesday 30 March 2021
Date of Despatch: Friday 26 March 2021
Contact for Enquiries: Nazyer Choudhury
Tel: 020 7926 0028
E-mail: nchoudhury@lambeth.gov.uk
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk

Page 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 9

Agenda Item 4

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 8 APRIL 2021
Licensing Application for the Grant of Premises License:
1. Quick Commerce Ltd, 10 Zennor Road Industrial Estate, Zennor Road, London SW12
0PS (Thornton ward)
Wards: Thornton
Portfolio: Deputy Leader of the Council (Sustainable Transport, Environment and Clean Air)
Councillor Claire Holland
Report Authorised by: Bayo Dosunmu: Strategic Director of Resident Services
Contact for enquiries: Sarah Williams, Licensing Officer, Public Protection and Regulatory
Services, 020 7926 6141, sgwilliams@lambeth.gov.uk
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
This report sets out details of applications for the variation of a premises licence on which
representations have been submitted by interested parties.

RECOMMENDATION
That the application set out in the Appendix to this report be considered having regard to the Council's
Licensing Policy, the Licensing Objectives and the representation(s) received.

CONSULTATION

Name of
consultee
Selina Wiafe and
Jean-Marc
Moocarme

Directorate or
Organisation
Legal and
Governance

Date sent to
consultee

Date response
received from
consultee

Comments
appear in
report
(paragraph(s))

23.3.2021

24.3.2021

N/A

REPORT HISTORY
Authorised by
Executive Member

Date report drafted

Report deadline

Date report sent

23.3.2021

24.3.2021

24.3.2021

APPENDICES
1. Report for Quick Commerce Ltd, 10 Zennor Road Industrial Estate, Zennor Road, London SW12 0PS
(Thornton ward)

Page 10

1.

CONTEXT

1.1

A licence from the Council is required for the supply of alcohol, and regulated entertainment.

1.2

A person (including a business) may make an application for a new Premises Licence or a
variation to an existing Premises Licence. Where representations are received a Licensing SubCommittee must consider the application. The Sub-Committee, when considering such
applications, shall carry out its function under the Licensing Act 2003 with a view to the Council's
Licensing Policy, Statutory Guidance and promoting the licensing objectives.

2.

PROPOSAL AND REASONS

2.1

The Licensing Sub-Committee has responsibility for exercising the Council's powers in respect of
the Licensing Act 2003. Determination by the Committee of the applications appended to this
report is required because representation(s) to the application(s) have been received.

2.2

Details of the application(s) are set out in the Appendix to this report. All statutory consultation
requirements have been complied with by the applicant(s) as set out in paragraph 3 below. The
results of consultation are reported in the appendices relating to each application. Public notice
has been given in accordance with the requirements of the Licensing Act 2003.

2.3

The applicants and persons making representations have been invited to attend the meeting.

2.4

The fees for premises and personal licences are prescribed within the Licensing Act 2003; in the
case of Premises Licences, the fees are based on the business rate of the premises.

3.

CONSULTATION REQUIREMENTS

3.1

The Licensing Act 2003 requires applicants for licences to consult and submit relevant
documentation to the Responsible Authorities as follows:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.
g.

Fire Authority;
Health & Safety Section;
Noise Service;
Police;
Social Services;
Town Planning; and,
Trading Standards.

3.2

Applicants are also required to advertise the application by displaying public notices on or near the
premises and by advertising the application in a local newspaper available in the vicinity of
premises. An applicant’s’ failure to comply with all of the above consultation requirements would
invalidate the application. All applications set out in the appendix of this report have complied with
the consultation requirements.

4.
4.1

FINANCE
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.

Page 11

5.

LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY

5.1

The licensing of premises for the supply of alcohol, regulated entertainment and late night
refreshment fall within the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003.

5.2

When considering licence applications the Sub-Committee shall carry out its function with a view to
the Council's Licensing Policy, Statutory Guidance and promoting the licensing objectives. The
Licensing Objectives are:
a.
b.
c.
d.

5.3

the prevention of crime and disorder;
Public safety;
the prevention of public nuisance; and,
the protection of children from harm.

The Sub-Committee must ensure that all licensing decisions have:
a.
b.
c.
d.

a direct relationship to the promotion of one or more of the 4 licensing objectives;
regard to the statement of licensing policy;
regard to the Secretary of State's Guidance; and,
there must not be a 'blanket policy' to the extent that it is applied so rigidly that an exercise of
discretion in each individual case is precluded.

Applications must be considered with regard to the principles of fair process and the Human Rights
Act.
5.4

The purpose of Lambeth’s Statement of Licensing Policy is to make clear to applicants and
relevant representatives the considerations that will be taken into account when determining
applications. It is also intended to guide the Licensing Committee when considering licensing
applications; however the Licensing Committee must consider each application on its own merit
and only allow exceptions to its own policy where the circumstances of the application justify it.

5.5

Subject to both the Council's Statement of Licensing Policy and Statutory Guidance having been
properly considered a Sub Committee may depart from them if there are good reasons for doing
so. Full reasons must be given and Sub Committees should be aware that such departures could
give rise to an appeal or judicial review.

5.6

The Statutory Guidance, Chapter 10, states that only necessary, proportionate conditions, which
promote one or more of the licensing objectives, should be attached to the licence if it is granted
(paragraph 10.11). The Licensing Authority may therefore only impose such conditions as are
necessary to promote the licensing objectives arising out of the consideration of the
representations (paragraph 10.11), and should avoid straying into undisputed areas (paragraph
9.24). Statutory Guidance also states that the pool of conditions that are supplied by the Secretary
of State should not be applied universally irrespective of particular circumstances, but may be used
as examples that can be tailored to suit individual premises and particular situations.

5.7

When considering an application for the variation of an existing licence only the variation is subject
to determination. No changes can be made to a licence or the conditions attached unless they are
subject to the variation application.

Page 12
5.8

Members are advised that when considering applications to vary an existing licence the following
options are available to them by virtue of the Licensing Act 2003, Part 3, Section 35, paragraphs 3
and 4.

5.9

Where relevant representations are made, the authority must – having regard to the
representations – take such steps (if any), as it considers necessary for the promotion of the
licensing objectives. The steps are:
a.
b.

modify the conditions of the licence (conditions are deemed to be modified if any are altered,
omitted or any new condition added); or,
reject the whole or part of the application

If neither of these steps are taken, the application must be granted.
5.10 Members are advised that when considering applications for a new Premises Licence the following
options are available to them by virtue of the Licensing Act 2003, Chapter 17, Part 3, Section 18
paragraph 4.
5.11 Where relevant representations are made, the authority must – having regard to the
representations, take such steps (if any), as it considers necessary for the promotion of the
licensing objectives. The steps are:
a.

b.
c.
d.

to grant the licence subject to:
i.
the conditions mentioned in subsection (2)(a) modified to such extent as the authority
considers necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives, and
ii.
any condition which must under section 19, 20 or 21 be included in the licence;
to exclude from the scope of the license any of the licensable activities to which the
application relates;
to refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor; or,
to reject the application.

5.12 When determining an application for a review of a premises licence members may take any of the
following steps they consider necessary to promote the licensing objectives:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.

to modify the conditions of the licence;
to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence;
to remove the designated premises supervisor;
to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;
to revoke the licence; or,
to take no action.

5.13 It is considered inappropriate for officers involved in the administration of applications to make
recommendations. However officers from the Responsible Authorities may request conditions be
imposed on a licence and make recommendations with regard to the licensing objectives.
5.14 In accordance with the provisions of Part 1 of Schedule 5 of the Act, where a Licensing Authority
rejects an application for a new premises licence or refuses (in whole or in part) an application to
vary a premises licence the applicant may appeal the decision.
5.15 Where the Licensing Authority grants an application for a new premises licence the premises
licence holder can appeal any decision to impose conditions on the premises licence, to exclude a

Page 13
licensable activity from the scope of the premises licence or to refuse to specify a named individual
as the Designated Premises Supervisor.
5.16 Where a person who made relevant representations in relation to an application contends: that the
licence should not have been granted; or that different or additional conditions should have been
imposed on the licence; or that a licensable activity should have been excluded from the scope of
the premises licence; or that the licensing authority should have refused to specify a named
individual as the Designated Premises Supervisor, they may appeal the decision.
5.17 Appeals are to be made to a Magistrates’ Court within 21 days beginning with the date of
notification of the decision. Further details are set out in the Act.

Page 14

Agenda Item 4a

Page 15

Licensing SubCommittee Report
Item No:

1

Title of Report:

Applicant:

Quick Commerce Ltd
10 Zennor Road Industrial Estate
Zennor Road SW12 0PS
London
SW12
0PS
Quick Commerce
Limited

Application Type:

Premises Licence (new application)

Application Date:

15th February 2021

Ward:

Thornton

Premises Type:

Online Delivery Service

Policy Context:

Lambeth Statement of Licensing Policy 2019 - 2024

Report Author:

Mrs Sarah Williams

Contact Details:

020 7926 6164

Application
Summary:

This is an application for a Premises Licence (new application)
authorising the following licensable activities: Sale by Retail of
Alcohol (Off the Premises)

sgwilliams@lambeth.gov.uk

Page 16

Consultation Information:
Department(s) or
Organisation(s)

Consulted (Y/N)

Date Response
Received

Comments
summarized in report
(Y/N)

Internal
Health & Safety Section

Y

Noise Service

12.02.21

Y

Social Services

Y
Y

Licensing Service

Y

09.02.21

Y

Planning

Y

Trading Standards

Y

11.02.21

Y

External
Fire Authority

Y

Police Licensing Unit

Y

Health Authority

Y

Policy implications:
Licensing Objectives (chapter 5, pages 9 to 15 of the policy & Appendices 1-4, pages 41
to 45)
The Licensing Objectives engaged by this application are:
 Prevention of Public Nuisance,
 Prevention of Crime and Disorder
 Public Safety
Hours of sale and location (Policy 8, pages 28 to 29 & Appendix 5, pages 46 to 47)
The premises are operated as a delivery service of groceries and convenience items including
alcohol.
Alcohol is proposed to be sold for consumption off the premises via an online platform and the
premises are located in Thornton which according to the current Licensing Policy, Appendix 7 is
an area generally deemed to be residential in nature.
The Policy recommends the earliest start time of 11:00 hours and 23:00 hours as terminal hour
on Monday to Sunday for premises of this kind in a residential area.
Note: The hours above are not absolute and are intended as a guide for applicants to consider
when completing their operating schedules. Each application will be considered on its own
merits. Applicants seeking hours later than those indicated in the Policy should provide detailed
evidence as to why their application will not have a negative impact on the licensing objectives.
The current Licensing Policy refers to Delivery Services businesses at Policy 16 (erroneously
marked as Policy 15), paragraph 22 and further guidance is set out at paragraphs 3.8 – 3.10
and 10.50 of the s. 182 Revised Guidance (2018).

Page 17

1. Application:
1.1

This is an application for a Premises Licence (new application) under section 17 of the
Licensing Act 2003

1.2

The application is seeking authorisation for:
Sale by Retail of Alcohol (Off the premises)
Monday - Sunday

1.3

0:00 - 00:00

It is proposed to open the premises (not to the public) on Monday to Sunday 00:00 00:00
A copy of the application is attached to this report as Annex A
A copy of the plan is attached to this report as Annex B

2. Representations:
2.1 Two representations were received against this application, from the Licensing Authority
and Public Protection.
2.2

The representations are based on the licensing objectives of prevention of public
nuisance, prevention of crime and disorder and public safety. The objectors were of the
view that should the application be granted, it will lead to a negative impact when
deliveries are made from the premises, especially during unsocial hours and in the early
hours of the morning.

2.3

Redacted copies of the representations were provided to the applicant and are attached to
this report as Annex C.

2.4

The Licensing Authority have proposed conditions to be attached to the premises licence,
these have yet to be agreed by the applicant. A consolidated list of the proposed
conditions and those offered in the operating schedule have been attached to this report
as Annex D.

2.5

The last date for making representations was 15th March 2021.

3. Current Licence:
3.1 The premises are currently not licensed.

4. Background History:
4.1

The premises are operated as a delivery service of groceries and convenience items
and include distributing supply of alcohol via an online platform/app.

Page 18

4.2

There has been no application for a Temporary Event Notice made in respect of the
premises within the last 12 months.

4.3

The premises are located in a large industrial estate with 28 individual units. Access to this
estate on Zennor road is off Weir road.

5. Observations:
5.1

The parts of the Statutory Guidance (April 2018) which are particularly relevant to this
application and the representations received are Chapters:
2 – The Licensing Objectives;
3 – Licensable Activities;
8 – Applications for Premises Licences;
9 –Determining Applications;
10 – Conditions Attached to Premises Licenses and Club Premises Certificates;

5.2

The parts of the Statement of Licensing Policy that are particularly relevant to this
application and the representations are Sections:
Chapter 5. The Licensing Objectives
Policy 1. Process for Applications
Policy 8. Hours of sale and locations
Policy 16: Delivery Services (note. erroneously marked as Policy 15)
Appendix 1 – Measures to promote the prevention of crime & disorder
Appendix 2 – Measures to promote public safety
Appendix 3 – Measure to promote public nuisance
Appendix 5 – Types of premises and recommended hours by type of location
Appendix 6 – Types of premises and potential impact

6. Conclusion:
6.1

Members are required to consider the application in light of all the relevant information,
and if approval is given, may attach such conditions appropriate to promote the licensing
objectives.

6.2

The options available to Members of the Licensing Sub Committee are;
1 – Grant the application as it currently stands.
2 – Grant the application subject to such conditions as the authority considers necessary
for the promotion of the licensing objectives.
3 – Exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which the
application relates.

Page 19

4 - To refuse to specify the individual named in the applications as the DPS
5 – Reject the application.

Appendices:
Annex A – Application form with supporting information
Annex B – Proposed Plan
Annex C – Representations
Annex D – Consolidated list of conditions
Reference Documents:
Local Government Act
1972 – Access to
information documents
used in the preparation of
this report

1 The Licensing Act 2003 (“the Act”)
2 Amended Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing
Act 2003 (April 2018) (“the Guidance”)
3 Lambeth Statement of Licensing Policy 2019 - 2024 (“the
Policy”)

This page is intentionally left blank

21
AnnexPage
A – Application
with supporting information

Lambeth Council
Lambeth Council, P.O. Box 734, Winchester, S023 5DG
T: 020 7926 1000
E: infoservice@lambeth.gov.uk

Ref: DSFX1613383518544

New Premises Licence

Premises Details
Unit 10, Zennor Road Industrial Estate Zennor Road London
SW12 0PS

Premises Address *

Telephone number at premises (if any)
Non-domestic value of premises. *

£ 27750

Applicant Details
I/We apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below (the
premises) and I/we are making this application to you as the relevant licensing authority in accordance with section 12 of the
Licensing Act 2003.
Please state whether you are applying for a premises licence
as:

a person other than an individual -as a limited company/
limited liability partnership

Applicant Details
If you are applying as a person described in one of the above
please confirm: *

I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which
involves the use of the premises for licensable activities; or

1/8

Page 22

Page 23

Ref: DSFX1613383518544

Operating Schedule
What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises? * (Please see sections 1 and 14 of the Licensing Act
2003 and Schedules 1 and 2 to the Licensing Act 2003)
Provision of regulated entertainment (please read guidance note 2) *

Plays

Films

Indoor Sporting Events

Boxing or Wrestling

Live Music

Recorded Music

Performances of Dance

Anything of a similar description falling under Music or Dance

Provision of late night refreshment

✓

Supply of Alcohol

3/8

Page 24

Ref: DSFX1613383518544

Supply of Alcohol Standard Times
Standard days and timings, where you intend to use the premises for the supply of alcohol. (please read guidance note 7)*
Please enter times in 24hr format (HH:MM)
Day *

Every Day
00:00
23:59

Supply of Alcohol
Will the supply of alcohol be for consumptionon premises or
off premises or both? (please read guidance note 8) *

Off the premises

State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol.
(please read guidance note 5)
Please state any non-standard timings, where you intend
to use the premises for the supply of alcoholat different
times from the Standard days and times listed?(please read
guidance note 6)

4/8

Page 25

Ref: DSFX1613383518544

Designated Premises Supervisor
State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the licence as designated premises supervisor
(Please see declaration about the entitlement to work in the checklist at the end of the form)
Title *

Mr

First name *

Joseph

Surname *

Falter

Street address *

Town/City *
County
Postcode *

Personal Licence Number (if known)
Issuing Licensing Authority (if known)

Adult Entertainment
Please highlight any adult entertainment or services,
activities, other entertainment or matters ancillary to the use
of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of
children (please read guidance note 9).

Not applicable.

5/8

Page 26

Ref: DSFX1613383518544

Opening Hours Standard Times
Standard days and timings, where the premises are open to the public. (please read guidance note 7) * Please enter times in
24hr format (HH:MM)
Day *

Every Day
00:00
23:59

Opening Hours
State any seasonal variations. (please read guidance note 5)

Members of the public will not have access to the premises at
any point in time.

Please state any Non-standard timings, where you intend the
premises to be open to the public at different times from the
Standard days and times listed? (please read guidance note
6)

Licensing Objectives
Describe any additional steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives as a result of the proposed variation:
a) General - all four licensing objectives (b, c, d and e)
(please read guidance note 10)

As per attached operating schedule.

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

As per attached operating schedule.

c) Public safety

As per attached operating schedule.

d) The prevention of public nuisance

As per attached operating schedule.

e) The protection of children from harm

As per attached operating schedule.

Declarations
Declaration Type *

Sole Applicant - Individual or Other

6/8

Page 27

Ref: DSFX1613383518544

Declarations
I have uploaded a copy of the plan of the premises. I have uploaded a copy of the consent form completed by the individual
I wish to be designated premises supervisor, if applicable. I understand I must now advertise my application. I understand
that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application will be rejected. Applicable to all individual applicants,
including those in partnership which is not a limited liability partnership, but not companies or limited liability partnerships I
have included documents demonstrating my entitlement to work in the United Kingdom (please read note 15)
IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN
CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY
CONVICTION TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT' 'IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT
1971 FOR A PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE
DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT
WITHOUT LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE LIABLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY
UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION, ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION
21 OF THE SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH
REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE EMPLOYEE IS DISQUALIFIED.
Signature/Declaration of applicant or applicant's solicitor or other duly authorised agent (see Guidance Note 11 &amp; 12).
If signing/applying on behalf of the applicant, please state your name and in what capacity you are authorised to sign/apply.
When submitting an on-line application form the 'Declaration made' checkbox must be selected.

✓

I understand I am not entitled to be issued with a licence if I do not have the entitlement to live and work in the UK (or
if I am subject to a condition preventing me from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity) and
that my licence will become invalid if I cease to be entitled to live and work in the UK (please read guidance note 15).

✓

The DPS named in this application form is entitled to work in the UK (and is not subject to conditions preventing him
or her from doing work relating to a licensable activity) and I have seen a copy of his or her proof of entitlement to
work, if appropriate (please see note 15).

Full Name *

Winckworth Sherwood LLP

Date *

15/02/2021

Capacity *

Applicant's Solicitor

✓

Declaration made

Do you wish to provide alternative correspondence details? *

Yes

7/8

Page 28

Page 29

Operating Schedule
General
1. The sale of alcohol from the premises shall be for delivery only by a delivery rider. Members of
the public will have no access to the premises.
Prevention of Crime and Disorder
2. A digital CCTV system will be installed, or the existing system maintained, such system to be
fit for the purpose and to be to the reasonable satisfaction of the police.
3. The CCTV system shall be capable of producing immediate copies on site. Copies of
recordings will either be recorded digitally on to CD/DVD or other equivalent medium.
4. Any recording will be retained and stored in a suitable and secure manner for a minimum of 30
days and shall be made available, subject to compliance with Data Protection legislation, to the
police for inspection within 24 hours of request.
5. The precise positions of the cameras may be agreed, subject to compliance with Data
Protection legislation, with the police from time to time.
6. The system will display, on any recording, the correct time and date of the recording.
7. The CCTV system will be maintained and fully operational throughout the hours that the
premises are open for any licensable activity.
8. An incident log/register shall be maintained to record all incidents of crime and disorder
occurring on delivery of products. This log/register will be available for inspection by a police
officer or other authorised officer on request.
The protection of children from harm
9. The premises licence holder will ensure that an age verification policy will apply whereby all
delivery riders will be trained to ask any customer to whom alcohol is delivered, who appears to
be under the age of 25 years to produce, before being sold alcohol, identification being a
passport or photocard driving licence bearing a holographic mark or other form of identification
that complies with any mandatory condition that may apply to this licence.
10. All delivery riders shall receive training in age restricted sales.
- Induction training must be completed and documented prior to the delivery of alcohol by the
rider.
- Refresher/reinforcement training must be completed and documented at intervals of no more
than 6 months.
Training records will be available for inspection by a police officer or other authorised officer on
request.
Training records will be electronically stored by the licence holder for a period of 12 months.
11. A warning shall be displayed on the digital platform on which an order is placed informing
customers that they must be aged 18 or over to make a purchase of alcohol and notifying
customers that the rider will carry out age verification on delivery. The customer will be required
to declare that he or she aged 18 or over. If the rider is not satisfied that the customer is aged 18
or over any alcohol in the order will be withheld.

Page 30

12. All riders shall be trained to record refusals of sales of alcohol in a refusals log/register. The
log/register will contain:
- details of the time and date the refusal was made;
- the identity of the rider refusing the sale;
- details of the alcohol the person attempted to purchase.
This log/register will be available for inspection by a police officer or other authorised officer on
request.
Public safety
13. Members of the public will not be allowed to enter the premises.
Prevention of public nuisance
14.. Delivery of alcohol shall be to a residential address or place of work.
15. Between the hours of 1800 and 0800 riders will be permitted to collect orders and deliver on
foot, by pedal bike, electric bike (or other electric vehicle) only.
16. Riders will not be permitted to smoke in the immediate vicinity of the premises.
17. Riders will not be permitted to congregate in the immediate vicinity of the premises.
18. Riders will be instructed not to loiter in the vicinity of residential premises.
19. No collections of waste or recycling materials (including bottles) from the premises shall take
place between 22:00 hours and 08:00 hours on the following day.
20. Prominent, clear and legible notices must be displayed at all exits requesting staff and
couriers to respect the needs of local residents and to leave the premises and the area
quietly.

Unit 10, Zennor Trade Park,
Balham, SW12 0PS

Annex B – Plan

193.3m2
17.9m

Entrance/Exit

10.8m

Page 31

Legend
Licensed area
Fire Exit
Assembly Point
Fire Extinguisher
Smoke Detector

W/C

A4 paper.
Scale 1:100
1cm = 1m

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 33 Annex C - Representations

Quick Commerce Ltd 21/00022/PRMNEW - 10 Zennor Road Industrial Estate, Zennor Road,
London, SW12 0PS ( Thornton) Representations by: 15.03.2021
As a responsible authority under section 13(4) of the Licensing Act 2003 as amended under
the Police and Social Responsibility Act 2011, the Licensing Authority have considered your
application in full. The Licensing Authority has concerns in relation to this application and how
the premises would promote the Licensing Objectives
The application seeks to permit:
Sale by Retail of Alcohol (Off the premises)
Monday - Sunday 00:00 – 00:00
Hours of opening
Monday - Sunday 00:00 – 00:00 (Not to the public)
Classification of Area within the policy
According to the current Licensing Policy, Appendix 5 page 54, the area in which the
premises are located within the industrial estate is deemed as a residential area. Please see
the map below showing the location of the premises (red arrow) and the surrounding roads,
with a mix of both business and residential properties. The Licensing Authority also note the
premises are not open to the public and will be used for the distributing supply of alcohol and
convenience goods for online delivery orders via an App.
The Licensing Authority also believe it is reasonable to assume the premises will be
delivering their alcoholic products to residential addresses. As such, this representation has
regard to the premises being operational within residential areas and those hours deemed
necessary for a residential area, as per the Licensing Policy should apply.
Proximity to residential accommodation is a general consideration with regard to the
prevention of public nuisance. The Authority will treat each case on its individual merits,
however, stricter conditions will generally be considered on premises licenses in areas that
have denser levels of residential accommodation or residential accommodation in close
proximity to them. According to the current Licensing Policy, Appendix 1 page 46, hours for
which premises which provide off sales within a residential area are 11:00 to 23:00 hours
Monday to Sunday.
Classification of Premises and Area within the policy
The premises are seeking sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises, but the premises
are not likely to be associated with street drinking or be targeted by underage drinkers, as the
premises are to be operated as delivery service of alcohol. The applicant has indicated there
will be no customers allowed on the premises.
According to the current Licensing Policy, page 36, the Authority expects licence applications
for delivery services that include the delivery of alcohol to take into account issues relating to
reducing public nuisance related to delivery vehicles, ensuring the security of premises and
delivery drivers, and protecting children by applying rigorous age checks at purchase point
and at point of delivery.
These types of services are not provided for in the Licensing Act 2003 in any way differently
from other licensed premises they do provide their own unique circumstances that need to be
addressed. In particular the Authority has concerns with the potential for the following:
• Age verification at both purchase point and delivery point;
• The safety of delivery drivers at point of delivery;
• Safety of the premises from which orders are taken and sent out for delivery; and

Page 34

• Possible public nuisance caused by delivery drivers collecting deliveries from the licensed
premises.
Conclusion
The premises are seeking sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises, but the premises
are not likely to be associated with street drinking or be targeted by underage drinkers, as the
premises are to be operated as delivery service of groceries & conveniences items including
Alcohol. The applicant has indicated there will be no customers allowed on the premises.
The applicant has proposed conditions in their operating schedule, but the hours sought are
beyond those recommended in the Licensing Policy and are likely to impact adversely on
residents in the area when deliveries are made from the premises, especially during unsocial
hours and in the early hours of the morning.
However, should the Committee be minded to grant the application, I will recommend the
application is granted with the hours 09:00 - 23:00 and the conditions below are attached to
the licence in addition to those proposed by the applicant.
The authority seeks the following conditions as appropriate to uphold the objectives. These
conditions are to replace those proposed by the applicant.
1. Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where the only
acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification cards, such as a
driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the PASS Hologram
2. It will be the responsibility of the management that, any outside companies used for
delivery must adhere to a strict "challenge 25" policy. It will be the responsibility of the
management to keep up to date with that company's policy and to review any partnerships
based on this policy
3. All alcohol sale orders shall be made via an online platform for delivery only and must be
paid for by debit or credit card.
4. Each delivery containing alcohol shall be labelled with the words "Age Restricted Product".
5. Details of the order (including the type, amount of alcohol, name, and address of the
customer) must be included with the order.
6. The details shall be shown on the printout receipt dispatched with the order. All delivery
drivers and riders must allow any Police Constable or Local Authority Officer to inspect any
alcohol or order details on request
7. All delivery orders shall be to a registered residential or business address. There shall be
no deliveries to public/communal areas or open spaces.
8. A signature at the point of delivery must be obtained from a person above the age of 18
with appropriate age verification identification. No delivery shall be left without a signature. In
the exceptional circumstances that a signature cannot be obtain, then the name and date of
birth of the person receiving the delivery shall be obtained.
9. All staff engage in the sale or supply of alcohol shall be trained in the prevention of
underage sales, drunkenness and proxy sales before being allowed to sell or supply any
alcohol. The training should be clearly documented and signed and dated by both the trainer
and the member of staff receiving it. The documentation shall be available
for inspection on request by an authorised officer of the Licensing Authority or a constable
10. Drivers must be instructed to abort delivery where that sale is believed to be a "street
sale". All such instances will be recorded in the refusals/incidents log.
11. Vehicles used for delivery should not be left idle outside the premises to ensure residents
in the locality are not disturbed.
12. There shall be a dedicated area for delivery personnel to safely park their vehicle and
collect the customer order.
13. The premises will operate as a delivery only business. The premises shall not be open to

Page 35

the public and will be used for the dispatch of alcohol only.
14. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system. All entry and exit
points must be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in a light
condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises are open. All
recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping.
Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately upon the request of Police or
authorised officer of Lambeth Council
15. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV
system must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent CCTV
images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when requested and within a maximum of
24 hours of the initial request
16. An incident log shall be kept at the premises and retained for a period of 12 months and
made available on request to an authorised officer of Lambeth Council or the Police. It must
be completed within 24 hours of the incident and will record the following:
(a) All crimes reported to the premises
(b) Any complaints received, and the remedial actions taken
(c) Any refusal of alcohol deliveries, the name of the member of staff or third party who
refused the delivery
(d) Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service
17. Website and all promotional materials should be designed and set out in a way which is
consistent with the responsible retail of alcohol.
18. A Noise Management Policy shall be in place to ensure appropriate measures are in
place to minimise noise and disturbance caused by the dispatch of deliveries and the
deliveries themselves.
19. All delivery riders shall receive training in age restricted sales.
- Induction training must be completed and documented prior to the delivery of alcohol by the
rider.
- Refresher/reinforcement training must be completed and documented at intervals of no more
than 6 months.
Training records will be available for inspection by a police officer or other authorised officer on
request. Training records will be electronically stored by the licence holder for a period of 12
months.
20. A warning shall be displayed on the digital platform on which an order is placed informing
customers that they must be aged 18 or over to make a purchase of alcohol and notifying
customers that the rider will carry out age verification on delivery. The customer will be
required to declare that he or she aged 18 or over. If the rider is not satisfied that the customer
is aged 18 or over any alcohol in the order will be withheld.
21. Between the hours of 1800 and 2300 riders will be permitted to collect orders and deliver
on foot, by pedal bike, electric bike (or other electric vehicle) only.
22. Riders will not be permitted to smoke in the immediate vicinity of the premises.
23. Riders will not be permitted to congregate in the immediate vicinity of the premises.
24. Riders will be instructed not to loiter in the vicinity of residential premises.
25. No collections of waste or recycling materials (including bottles) from the premises shall
take place between 22:00 hours and 08:00 hours on the following day.
26. Prominent, clear and legible notices must be displayed at all exits requesting staff and
couriers to respect the needs of local residents and to leave the premises and the area
quietly.
Should the applicant be minded to agree to the reduced hours and the conditions proposed
above, the authority will withdraw its representation
Pamela Riley
Licensing Officer

Page 36

Page 37

Miss Bina Patel
Licensing Manager
London Borough Lambeth

12th March 2021

Dear Ms Patel
I write on behalf of the London Borough of Lambeth Public Protection Team regarding the new license
application that has been made by:
Quick Commerce Ltd
10 Zennor Road Industrial Estate
Zennor Road
London
SW12 0PS
The Public Protection Team request that you accept this as a formal representation against the abovementioned new license application on the grounds of the following licensing objectives:
•

The prevention of public nuisance.

Summary
Public Protection have concerns in relation to issuing a twenty four hour off sales alcohol license to this
premises, whilst we understand that currently there will be no public allowed on site, once the current
COVID restrictions begin to release and the demand for home alcohol delivery decreases Public Protection
are not confident no public on site will remain the case.
We are also concerned in relation to the noise caused by a twenty four hour licensed delivery service,
whilst the applicant has offered some suggestions in their operating schedule these do not take into
account the possible noise disturbance at the delivery address, most of which Public Protection would
assume will be residential premises in residential areas.
Conclusion
Public Protection are of the view that this license application has not considered the recommended advice
in relation to licensing hours in the Lambeth Licensing Policy, which in this situation are extremely relevant,
therefore we are representing against this application.
Yours sincerely

Keith Badrick
Public Protection Officer
1

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 39

Annex D – Consolidated list of conditions

Operating Schedule – Conditions.
1. The sale of alcohol from the premises shall be for delivery only by a delivery rider.
Members of the public will have no access to the premises.
2. A digital CCTV system will be installed, or the existing system maintained, such system
to be fit for the purpose and to be to the reasonable satisfaction of the police.
3. The CCTV system shall be capable of producing immediate copies on site. Copies of
recordings will either be recorded digitally on to CD/DVD or other equivalent medium.
4. Any recording will be retained and stored in a suitable and secure manner for a minimum
of 30 days and shall be made available, subject to compliance with Data Protection
legislation, to the police for inspection within 24 hours of request.
5. The precise positions of the cameras may be agreed, subject to compliance with Data
Protection legislation, with the police from time to time.
6. The system will display, on any recording, the correct time and date of the recording.
7. The CCTV system will be maintained and fully operational throughout the hours that the
premises are open for any licensable activity.
8. An incident log/register shall be maintained to record all incidents of crime and disorder
occurring on delivery of products. This log/register will be available for inspection by a
police officer or other authorised officer on request.
9. The premises licence holder will ensure that an age verification policy will apply whereby
all delivery riders will be trained to ask any customer to whom alcohol is delivered, who
appears to be under the age of 25 years to produce, before being sold alcohol,
identification being a passport or photocard driving licence bearing a holographic mark or
other form of identification that complies with any mandatory condition that may apply to
this licence.
10. All delivery riders shall receive training in age restricted sales.
- Induction training must be completed and documented prior to the delivery of alcohol by
the rider.
- Refresher/reinforcement training must be completed and documented at intervals of no
more than 6 months. Training records will be available for inspection by a police officer or
other authorised officer on request. Training records will be electronically stored by the
licence holder for a period of 12 months.
11. A warning shall be displayed on the digital platform on which an order is placed
informing customers that they must be aged 18 or over to make a purchase of alcohol and
notifying customers that the rider will carry out age verification on delivery. The customer
will be required to declare that he or she aged 18 or over. If the rider is not satisfied that the
customer is aged 18 or over any alcohol in the order will be withheld.
12. All riders shall be trained to record refusals of sales of alcohol in a refusals log/register.
The log/register will contain:
- details of the time and date the refusal was made;
- the identity of the rider refusing the sale;
- details of the alcohol the person attempted to purchase.
This log/register will be available for inspection by a police officer or other authorised officer
on request.
13. Members of the public will not be allowed to enter the premises.

Page 40

14.. Delivery of alcohol shall be to a residential address or place of work.
15. Between the hours of 1800 and 0800 riders will be permitted to collect orders and
deliver on foot, by pedal bike, electric bike (or other electric vehicle) only.
16. Riders will not be permitted to smoke in the immediate vicinity of the premises.
17. Riders will not be permitted to congregate in the immediate vicinity of the premises.
18. Riders will be instructed not to loiter in the vicinity of residential premises.
19. No collections of waste or recycling materials (including bottles) from the premises shall
take place between 22:00 hours and 08:00 hours on the following day.
20. Prominent, clear and legible notices must be displayed at all exits requesting staff and
couriers to respect the needs of local residents and to leave the premises and the area
quietly.

Licensing Authority Proposed Conditions.
The authority seeks the following conditions as appropriate to uphold the objectives. These
conditions are to replace those proposed by the applicant.
1. Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where the only
acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification cards, such as
a driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the PASS Hologram
2. It will be the responsibility of the management that, any outside companies used for
delivery must adhere to a strict "challenge 25" policy. It will be the responsibility of the
management to keep up to date with that company's policy and to review any partnerships
based on this policy
3. All alcohol sale orders shall be made via an online platform for delivery only and must be
paid for by debit or credit card.
4. Each delivery containing alcohol shall be labelled with the words "Age Restricted
Product".
5. Details of the order (including the type, amount of alcohol, name, and address of the
customer) must be included with the order.
6. The details shall be shown on the printout receipt dispatched with the order. All delivery
drivers and riders must allow any Police Constable or Local Authority Officer to inspect any
alcohol or order details on request
7. All delivery orders shall be to a registered residential or business address. There shall be
no deliveries to public/communal areas or open spaces.
8. A signature at the point of delivery must be obtained from a person above the age of 18
with appropriate age verification identification. No delivery shall be left without a signature.
In the exceptional circumstances that a signature cannot be obtain, then the name and date
of birth of the person receiving the delivery shall be obtained.
9. All staff engage in the sale or supply of alcohol shall be trained in the prevention of
underage sales, drunkenness and proxy sales before being allowed to sell or supply any
alcohol. The training should be clearly documented and signed and dated by both the
trainer and the member of staff receiving it. The documentation shall be available
for inspection on request by an authorised officer of the Licensing Authority or a constable
10. Drivers must be instructed to abort delivery where that sale is believed to be a "street
sale". All such instances will be recorded in the refusals/incidents log.
11. Vehicles used for delivery should not be left idle outside the premises to ensure
residents in the locality are not disturbed.

Page 41

12. There shall be a dedicated area for delivery personnel to safely park their vehicle and
collect the customer order.
13. The premises will operate as a delivery only business. The premises shall not be open
to the public and will be used for the dispatch of alcohol only.
14. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system. All entry and
exit points must be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in a light
condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises are open. All
recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping.
Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately upon the request of Police or
authorised officer of Lambeth Council
15. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV
system must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent CCTV
images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when requested and within a maximum
of 24 hours of the initial request
16. An incident log shall be kept at the premises and retained for a period of 12 months and
made available on request to an authorised officer of Lambeth Council or the Police. It must
be completed within 24 hours of the incident and will record the following:
(a) All crimes reported to the premises
(b) Any complaints received, and the remedial actions taken
(c) Any refusal of alcohol deliveries, the name of the member of staff or third party who
refused the delivery
(d) Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service
17. Website and all promotional materials should be designed and set out in a way which is
consistent with the responsible retail of alcohol.
18. A Noise Management Policy shall be in place to ensure appropriate measures are in
place to minimise noise and disturbance caused by the dispatch of deliveries and the
deliveries themselves.
19. All delivery riders shall receive training in age restricted sales.
- Induction training must be completed and documented prior to the delivery of alcohol by the
rider.
- Refresher/reinforcement training must be completed and documented at intervals of no
more than 6 months. Training records will be available for inspection by a police officer or
other authorised officer on request. Training records will be electronically stored by the
licence holder for a period of 12 months.
20. A warning shall be displayed on the digital platform on which an order is placed informing
customers that they must be aged 18 or over to make a purchase of alcohol and notifying
customers that the rider will carry out age verification on delivery. The customer will be
required to declare that he or she aged 18 or over. If the rider is not satisfied that the
customer is aged 18 or over any alcohol in the order will be withheld.
21. Between the hours of 1800 and 2300 riders will be permitted to collect orders and deliver
on foot, by pedal bike, electric bike (or other electric vehicle) only.
22. Riders will not be permitted to smoke in the immediate vicinity of the premises.
23. Riders will not be permitted to congregate in the immediate vicinity of the premises.
24. Riders will be instructed not to loiter in the vicinity of residential premises.
25. No collections of waste or recycling materials (including bottles) from the premises shall
take place between 22:00 hours and 08:00 hours on the following day.
26. Prominent, clear and legible notices must be displayed at all exits requesting staff and
couriers to respect the needs of local residents and to leave the premises and the area
quietly.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 43

Agenda Item 5

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 8 APRIL 2021
Consideration of objection to Temporary Event Notice:
1. Cattivo, 201-207 Ferndale Road, SW9 8BA (Ferndale)
2. Canova Hall, 248-250 Ferndale Road, SW9 8BQ (Ferndale)
Wards: Ferndale
Portfolio: Deputy Leader of the Council (Sustainable Transport, Environment and Clean Air)
Councillor Claire Holland
Report Authorised by: Bayo Dosunmu: Strategic Director of Resident Services
Contact for enquiries: Tom Dunn, Licensing Officer, Public Protection and Regulatory
Services, 0207 926 1866, tdunn@lambeth.gov.uk

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
This report sets out details of a temporary event notice which has been given to the licensing authority,
in respect of which the Police and Environmental Health (Community Safety) have submitted an
objection notice.

RECOMMENDATION
1.

That the notice(s) set out in the Appendix to this report be considered having regard to the
Council's Licensing Policy, the Licensing Objectives and the objection notice(s) received.

CONSULTATION

Name of
consultee
J-M Moocarme

Directorate or
Organisation
Legal and
Governance

Date sent to
consultee

Date response
received from
consultee

Comments
appear in
report
(paragraph(s))

24/03/21

24/03/21

N/A

Page 44
REPORT HISTORY
Authorised by
Executive Member

Date report drafted

Report deadline

Date report sent

24/03/21

24/03/21

24/03/21

APPENDICES
1. Report for Cattivo, 201-207 Ferndale Road, SW9 8BA (Ferndale)
2. Report for Canova Hall, 248-250 Ferndale Road, SW9 8BQ (Ferndale)

1.

CONTEXT

1.1

Authorisation from the Council is required for the sale or supply of alcohol, the provision of
regulated entertainment and the provision of late-night refreshment.

1.2

While most large-scale or permanent businesses will hold Premises Licences to authorise their
activities, the Act also provides a light-touch mechanism for smaller, infrequent events, known as
Temporary Event Notices.

1.3

An individual (known as the “premises user”) may give notice of a proposal to use premises for a
temporary event, engaging in one or more licensable activities for a period of no more than 168
consecutive hours. The Licensing Sub-Committee is required to consider any objection notice
received and must give the premises user a counter-notice under section 105 of the Licensing Act
2003 if it considers it appropriate for the promotion of a licensing objective to do so. The temporary
event may not proceed if a counter-notice has been issued.

2.

PROPOSALS AND REASONS

2.1

The Licensing Sub-Committee has responsibility for exercising many of the Council's powers in
respect of the Licensing Act 2003. Consideration by the Committee of the notice appended to this
report is required because the notice have attracted an objection from the Police and the Council’s
Community Safety Team.

2.2

Details of the notice are set out in the Appendix to this report. The statutory consultation
requirement set out in paragraph 3 below has been complied with by the premises user(s), and has
resulted in the Noise Team and/or the Police giving an objection notice to the licensing authority.

2.3

The premises user, the Police and the Community Safety Team have been invited to attend the
hearing.

2.4

The fee for giving a temporary event notice is prescribed within the Licensing Act 2003.

3.

CONSULTATION REQUIREMENTS

3.1

The premises user is required to give a copy of any temporary event notice to the Police and the
Council’s Environmental Health (Community Safety Team) no later than 10 working days before
the first day of the proposed event. If either body is satisfied that allowing the premises to be used
in accordance with the notice would undermine any of the licensing objectives, they must give an

Page 45
objection notice to the licensing authority and to the premises user within three working days of
receiving the copy of the notice. It is also possible to give a late TEN with between 5 and 10
working days’ notice, however if an objection notice is given the event cannot proceed.
3.2

3.3

An applicants’ failure to comply with the above consultation requirements would invalidate the
notice. All notices set out in the appendix of this report have complied with the consultation
requirements.
The Act does not make provision for further consultation with any other responsible authorities nor
interested parties, and there is no requirement for the premises user to publicise their notice.

4.

FINANCE

4.1

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.

5.

LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY

5.1

The authorisation of premises for the supply of alcohol, regulated entertainment and late night
refreshment fall within the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003.

5.2

When carrying out its licensing functions, the Sub-Committee shall act with regard to the Council's
Licensing Policy, Statutory Guidance, and with a view to promoting the Licensing Objectives. The
objectives are:
a.
b.
c.
d.

5.3

the prevention of crime and disorder;
public safety;
the prevention of public nuisance; and,
the protection of children from harm.

The Sub-Committee must ensure that all licensing decisions have:
a.
b.
c.
d.

a direct relationship to the promotion of one or more of the four licensing objectives;
regard to the statement of licensing policy;
regard to the Secretary of State's Guidance; and,
there must not be a 'blanket policy' to the extent that it is applied so rigidly that an exercise of
discretion in each individual case is precluded.

5.4

Applications must be considered with regard to the principles of fair process and the Human Rights
Act.

5.5

The purpose of Lambeth’s Statement of Licensing Policy is to make clear to applicants and
relevant representatives the considerations that will be taken into account when determining
applications. It is also intended to guide the Licensing Committee when considering licensing
applications; however the Licensing Committee must consider each application on its own merit
and only allow exceptions to its own policy where the circumstances of the application justify it.

5.6

Subject to both the Council's Statement of Licensing Policy and Statutory Guidance having been
properly considered, a Sub Committee may depart from them if there are good reasons for doing
so. Full reasons must be given and Sub-Committees should be aware that such departures could
give rise to an appeal or judicial review.

Page 46
5.7

Section 105(2)(b) of the Act requires that the licensing authority must, having regard to the
objection notice, give the premises user a counter notice under this section if it considers it,
“appropriate for the promotion of a licensing objective to do so.” The temporary event may not
proceed if a counter-notice has been given.

5.8

Section 106A(2) of the Act provides that the licensing authority may impose one or more conditions
on the standard TEN if:
a.
b.
c.

5.9

it considers it appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives to do so;
the conditions are also imposed on a premises licence or club premises certificate that has
effect in respect of or in any part of the same premises as the TEN; or,
the conditions would not be inconsistent with the carrying out of licensable activities under
the TEN.

It is considered inappropriate for officers involved in the administration of notices to make
recommendations. However, the Committee may choose whether to have regard to any
representations made by police officers or Council’s Noise and Pollution Team if they believe that
using the premises in accordance with the TEN will undermine the licensing objectives.

5.10 At any time prior to the hearing, the police or the Council’s Noise and Pollution Team may, with the
agreement of the premise’s user, modify the temporary event notice by making changes to the
notice. The objection notice shall be treated as having been withdrawn from the time the temporary
event notice is modified. The premises user may also withdraw the notice completely at any time
up until 24 hours prior to the proposed start time of the notice.
5.11 In accordance with the provisions of Part 3 of Schedule 5 of the Act, where the licensing authority
gives a counter-notice under section 105, the premises user may appeal against the decision.
Where the authority does not give a counter-notice, the person giving the objection notice may
appeal against the decision. In both cases, appeals must be made to a Magistrates Court within 21
days of receiving notification of the decision - however, no appeal can be brought less than 5
working days prior to the first proposed event day.

Agenda Item 5a

Page 47

Licensing SubCommittee Report
Item No:

1

Title of Report:

Cattivo
201 - 207 Ferndale Road, London, SW9 8BA

Applicant:

Metropolitan Police Service & Public Protection

Application Type:

Temporary Event Notices (TEN)

Application Date:

4th March 2021

Ward:

Ferndale

Premises Type:

Bar

Policy Context:

Lambeth Statement of Licensing Policy 2019 - 2024

Report Author:

Mr Tom Dunn

Contact Details:

020 7926 1866

Application
Summary:

This is an application by the Metropolitan Police Service and
Public Protection for a counter notice to be issued against a
Temporary Event Notice.

tdunn@lambeth.gov.uk

Page 48

Consultation Information:
Department(s) or
Organisation(s)

Consulted (Y/N)

Date Response
Received

Comments
summarized in report
(Y/N)

Applicant

09/03/21

Y

Applicant

09/03/21

Y

Internal
Noise Service
External
Police Licensing Unit
Policy implications:
Licensing Objectives (chapter 5, pages 9 to 15 of the policy and appendices 1 to 4,
pages 41 to 45)
The Licensing Objectives engaged by this application are:Prevention of Public Nuisance,
Prevention of Crime & Disorder
Temporary Events (policy 6, pages 23 to 25)
Where a TEN is given for a premises which holds an existing premises licence, it is expected
that any existing conditions on the licence will be maintained for the purposes of the TEN.

1. Application:
1.1

Mr Darren Rumbelow on 4th March 2021 gave the Licensing Authority a Temporary
Event Notice (TEN) under section 100 of the Licensing Act 2003.

1.2

The Notice will authorise the following licensable activities:



Sale by Retail of Alcohol
Late Night Refreshment

1.3

It is proposed to provide these activities to no more than 150 persons at the premises,
during the hours 23:00 - 02:00 hours on 30th - 31st May 2021.

1.4

A copy of the notice is attached to this report as Annex A

2. Representations:
2.1 An objection notice was received from the Metropolitan Police Service & Public
Protection on 9th March 2021. The objections engage with the licensing objectives of the
prevention of public nuisance and prevention of crime and disorder.
2.2 Both responsible authorities are concerned that the request for an increase in the
premises hours will facilitate further alcohol consumption, which could lead to an
increase in criminality and anti-social behaviour.

Page 49

2.3 The last date for giving an objection notice was 9th March 2021.
2.4 A copy of the objections have been provided to the applicant and are appended to this
report as Annex B.
2.5 In response to the objections made by the authorities, the applicant has provided
supporting information. This information hasn’t addressed the concerns of the Police
and Public Protection. A copy of the additional information and correspondence
between the notice giver and both responsible authorities can be seen at Annex C.

3. Current Licence:
3.1

There is a valid premises licence in place for this address, licence number
18/00161/PRMNEW, which authorises the following licensable activities:
Recorded Music and Late Night Refreshment
Sunday - Thursday 23:00 - 00:00
Friday & Saturday 23:00 - 02:00
Sale by Retail of Alcohol
Sunday - Thursday 10:00 - 00:00
Friday & Saturday 10:00 - 02:00
Non-standard timings
From the start time on New Year's Eve to 02:00 on New Year's Day.
An additional hour when British Summer Time commences.
Terminal hour to be 02:00 on Sundays before Bank Holiday Mondays.

3.2

This licence was granted on the 4th October 2018 and the licence holder Albion & East
Ltd has been in place for the duration of the licence.

3.3

A recent Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) Variation has been submitted in
respect of this licence. This application took immediate effect on the 10th March 2021 to
name Kamila Wasilewska as the new DPS to replace Darren Rumbelow. This
application is currently out to consultation until 24th March 2021.

3.4

A copy of the premises licence can be found at Annex D.

4. Background History:
4.1

This will be the first TENs applied for in the calendar year 2021.

4.2

The Premises are located within Brixton Major Town Centre. The area is well
serviced by public transport, with bus links, the underground and railway services,
some of which are 24/7, in close proximity to the premises.

5. Observations:
5.1

The parts of the Statutory Guidance (April 2018) relevant to this application and the
representations received are Chapters:

Page 50

7 – Temporary Event Notices;
9 –Determining Applications;
15 – Regulated Entertainment.
5.2

The parts of the Statement of Licensing Policy that are relevant to this application and the
representations are Sections:
5. The Licensing Objectives
5.11. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder
5.20. Public Safety
5.27. Prevention of Public Nuisance
Policy 6 - Temporary Events
Appendix 1 – The Prevention of Crime and Disorder
Appendix 2 – Public Safety
Appendix 3 – Prevention of Public Nuisance
Appendix 5 – Recommend hours by location
Appendix 6 – Types of premises
Appendix 7 – Major, District and local Town Centres

6. Conclusion:
6.1 Members have three options when determining this Notice,
 To issue a Counter-Notice
 To refuse to issue Counter Notice,
 To impose on the Notice, one or more conditions imposed on the premises
licence that has effect in respect of the same premises.
Appendices:
Annex A – TEN Application
Annex B – Metropolitan Police Service & Public Protection objections
Annex C – Notice giver’s additional information
Annex D – A copy of the premises licence for Cattivo, 201-207 Ferndale Road
Reference Documents:
Local Government Act
1972 – Access to
information documents
used in the preparation of
this report

1 The Licensing Act 2003 (“the Act”)
2 Amended Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing
Act 2003 (April 2018) (“the Guidance”)
3 Lambeth Statement of Licensing Policy 2019 - 2024 (“the
Policy”)

Lambeth Council
Lambeth Council, P.O. Box 734, Winchester, S023 5DG
T: 020 7926 1000
E: infoservice@lambeth.gov.uk

Page 51

Annex A
Ref: DSFX1614876717386

Temporary Event Notice

Personal Details of Premises User
Your Name (please read note 1)
Title *

Mr

First Name *

Darren

Surname *

Rumbelow

Have you been known by any previous names, including a
maiden name? *

No

Personal Details of Premises User
Date of Birth *
Place of Birth *
National Insurance Number *

1/6

Page 52

Ref: DSFX1614876717386

Current Address
We will use this address and contact details to correspond with you unless you specify an alternative correspondence
address.
Street Address *
Address line 2
Address line 3
Town/City *

London

Postcode *
Daytime Telephone Number *
Evening Telephone Number
Mobile Telephone Number
Fax Number
Email Address *
Do you have an alternative correspondence address you
would like us to use? *

No

The Premises
Premises Address

207 Ferndale Road Brixton London SW9 8BA

Does a premises licence or club premises certificate have
effect in relation to the premises, or any part of the premises?
Yes - Premises Licence
If so, please select and enter the Premises Licence Number
or Club Premises Certificate Number.*

Premises Licence
Premises Licence Number *

PREM2153

2/6

Page 53

Ref: DSFX1614876717386

Premises
If you intend to use only part of the premises at this address
or intend to restrict the area to which this notice applies,
please give a description and details. (Please read note 3)

All of the bar please.

Please describe the nature of the premises. (Please read
note 4) *

Just wish to open later on Bank holiday Sunday 30th May if
that's ok?

Please describe the nature of the event. (Please read note 5)
*

No event as such. Just want to open later due to bank
holiday (Saturday Hours)

3/6

Page 54

Ref: DSFX1614876717386

Licensable Activites
Please state the licensable activities that you intend to carry on at the premises (please tick all licensable activities you
intend to carry on). (Please read note 6) * More than one can be selected.

✓

The sale by retail of alcohol

The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order of, a member of the club

The provision of regulated entertainment (Please read note 7)

✓

The provision of late night refreshment

Are you giving a late temporary event notice? (Please read
note 8) *

No

Please state the dates on which you intend to use these
premises for licensable activities (Please read note 9). * Start
Date

30/05/2021

End Date

31/05/2021

Please state the times during the event period that you
propose to carry on licensable activities (please give times in
24 hour clock). (Please read note 10) *

We already have a licence until 11pm on the Sunday
normally. we would like to open until 2am on the Monday
morning (Same as Saturday Trading Hours)

Please state the maximum number of people at any one time
that you intend to allow to be present at the premises during
the times when you intend to carry on licensable activities,
including any staff, organisers or performers. (Please read
note 11) *

150

If the licensable activities will include the sale or supply of
alcohol, please state whether these will be for consumption
on or off the premises, or both (please read note 12). *

On the premises only

Please state if the licensable activities will include the
provision of relevant entertainment. If so, please state the
times during the event period that you propose to provide
relevant entertainment (including, but not limited to lap
dancing and pole dancing). (Please read note 13) *

No Entertainment. Possible DJ but likely it will be seated
service only due to COVID restrictions, hence normal
background music only.

Personal Licence Holder
Do you currently hold a valid personal licence? (please read
note 14)*

Yes

4/6

Page 55

Ref: DSFX1614876717386

Personal Licence Details
Issuing Licensing Authority *

Broxtowe

Licence number *
Date of issue *
No issue date on my licence I got it under "grandfather rights"
when they were first issued. I am DPS at this site.

Please provide any further details you think may be relevant.

Previous Temporary Event Notices
Have you previously given a temporary event notice in
respect of any premises, for events falling in the same
calendar year as the event for which you are now giving this
temporary event notice? (please read note 15) *

No

Previous Temporary Event Notices
Have you already given a temporary event notice for the
same premises in which the event period either; ends 24
hours or less before begins 24 hours or less after the event
period proposed in this notice? *

No

Associates and Business Colleagues
Has any associate of yours given a temporary event notice
for an event in the same calendar year as the event for which
you are now giving a temporary event notice? (please read
note 16) *

No

Associates and Business Colleagues
Has any associate of yours already given a temporary event
notice for the same premises in which the event period; a)
ends 24 hours or less before; or b) begins 24 hours or less
after the event period proposed in this notice? *

No

Has any person with whom you are in business carrying on
licensable activities given a temporary event notice for an
event in the same calendar year as the event for which you
are now giving a temporary event notice? *

No

5/6

Page 56

Ref: DSFX1614876717386

Associates and Business Colleagues
Has any person with whom you are in business carrying on
licensable activities already given a temporary event notice
for the same premises in which the event period: a) ends 24
hours or less before; or b) begins 24 hours or less after the
event period proposed in this notice? *

No

Declaration
Please ensure you submit all the information required to support your proposal. Failure to submit all the information required
could result in your notice being deemed invalid. It will not be considered valid until all the information required by the
licensing authority has been submitted. Please read guidance note 17 for further information. I understand that a copy of this
notice will be sent to the chief officer of police for the area in which the premises are situated. I understand that a copy of
this notice will be sent to the local authority exercising environmental health functions for the area in which the premises are
situated. If the premises are situated in one or more licensing authority areas, I understand that the issuing authority will send
at least one copy of this notice to each additional licensing authority. If the premises are situated in one or more police areas, I
understand that the issuing authority will send a copy of this notice to each additional chief officer of police.
It is a condition of this temporary event notice that where the relevant licensable activities described include the supply of
alcohol that all such supplies are made by or under the authority of the premises user. (please read note 18)
The information contained in this form is correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. I understand that it is an offence: (i)
to knowingly or recklessly make a false statement in or in connection with this temporary event notice and that a person is
liable on summary conviction for such an offence to a fine of any amount; and (ii) to permit an unauthorised licensable activity
to be carried on at any place and that a person is liable on summary conviction for any such offence to a fine of any amount,
or to imprisonment for a term not exceeding six months, or to both.
Name of Person Signing *

Darren Rumbelow

Date *

04/03/2021

✓

Declaration Made

Email confirmation
On submission an email confirmation will be sent using the details below
Forename

Darren

Surname /Company Name

Rumbelow

Email *
Telephone

6/6

Page 57

Annex B

AS - Lambeth Licensing & Night
Time Economy Team
Civic Centre, 3rd Floor
6 Brixton Hill,
SW2 1EG
9th March 2021
Contact: PC Mike Constable
Miss Bina Patel
Licensing Manager
Lambeth Borough Council

RE: Objection – Cativo, 207 Ferndale Road, SW9
21/00015/TEN – 30th to 31st May 2021
From 2300 to 0200 hours
Capacity – 150
Sale of alcohol and Late Night Refreshments.
Notice of objection under Section 104 (2) of the Licensing Act 2003
Dear Miss Patel.
Notice of objection is hereby given on behalf of the Commissioner of Police for the
Metropolis for the above Temporary Event Notice (TEN) on the grounds:


Prevention of crime and disorder.



Prevention of Public Nuisance.

With regards to London Borough Of Lambeth’s Statement of Licensing Policy 2019 –
2024
‘12.11.
When a TENs is submitted the Authority expects that the following information will be
provided:


A risk assessment and capacity determination;

Page 58

To address the concerns of Covid-19 spreading the Health Protection Regulations 2020
were brought in by the Government.
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2020/684/regulation/5
The MPS are raising this concern as the common law offence of causing a public
nuisance historically, includes the risk of spreading contagious diseases. This is also a
criminal offence.
(For the criminal offence of causing a public nuisance see: R v Rimmington; R v
Goldstein [2005] UKHL 63). 1
There is no mention of how they will manage this with no Covid-19 Risk assessment
provided.
Furthermore there is no information provided on how they will manage their patrons
especially as this will take place in the early hours of the morning. There is the
expectation that due to relaxation in restrictions there will be an overwhelming amount of
people wishing to go out. How will this be monitored and dealt with?
Conclusion
Whilst it is acknowledged that businesses are struggling, we all need to play our part
during this pandemic. There is the reasonable expectation of how this would be
managed.
The increase in hours will facilitate further alcohol consumption, which is believed will
lead to an increase in criminality and anti-social behavior.
The Metropolitan Police Service recommends that TEN is not granted. This will ensure
the full adhering to the Coronavirus Health Protection Regulations 2020. In order to help
reduce the spread of Corona Virus and fully promote the Licensing Objectives.
Yours sincerely,
Mike Constable | PC 1596 AS - Licensing & Night Time Economy Team | Lambeth Borough
Address Civic Centre, 3rd Floor, 6 Brixton Hill, SW2 1EG
1

‐ In reference to Pendulum Pub V West Midlands Police 2020 – Summary Review.
https://www.ftbchambers.co.uk/news/pendulum‐pub‐licence‐revoked‐summary‐review‐
hearing‐breaking‐lockdown‐regulations

Page 59

9th March 2020

Miss Bina Patel
Licensing Manager
Lambeth Borough Council
RE: Objection – Cativo, 207 Ferndale Road, SW9
21/00015/TEN – 30th to 31st May 2021
From 2300 to 0200 hours
Capacity – 150
Sale of alcohol and Late Night Refreshments.
Notice of objection under Section 104 (2) of the Licensing Act 2003

Dear Miss Patel.
I write on behalf of the London Borough of Lambeth Public Protection team to make a
representation, on the grounds of the following Licensing Objectives
Prevention of crime and disorder.
Prevention of Public Nuisance.
With regards to London Borough Of Lambeth’s Statement of Licensing Policy 2019 –
2024
‘12.11.
When a TENs is submitted the Authority expects that the following information will be
provided:
A risk assessment and capacity determination;
To address the concerns of Covid-19 spreading the Health Protection Regulations 2020
were brought in by the Government.
The Public Protection are raising this concern as the common law offence of causing a
public historically, includes the risk of spreading contagious diseases.

Page 60

There is no mention of how they will manage this with no Covid-19 Risk assessment
provided.
There is no information provided on how they will manage their patrons
especially as this will take place in the early hours of the morning
.
There is the expectation that due to relaxation in restrictions there will be an overwhelming
amount of people wishing to go out. How will this be monitored and appropriate action be
taken?
Conclusion
We acknowledged that businesses are struggling, we all need to play our part
during this pandemic. There is the reasonable expectation of how this would be
managed.
The increase in hours will facilitate further alcohol consumption, which is believed will
lead to an increase in criminality, anti-social behavior and noise nuisance.
The Public Protection recommends that TEN is not granted.
.

Arif Kokkoz
Public Protection Officer
Public Protection & Regulatory Services
Environment Directorate
Resident Services
London Borough of Lambeth
Civic Centre
6 Brixton Hill
SW2 1EG

Page 61

Annex C

Thomas Dunn
From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:
Subject:

Mike.Constable@met.police.uk
23 March 2021 08:53
Thomas Dunn; Arif Kokkoz
Pam Riley;
RE: Public Protection Objection - 21/00014 - Canova Hall, 250 Ferndale Road and Objection 21/00015/TEN : Cattivo, 207 Ferndale Road

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize
the sender and know the content is safe.

Good morning all.
Thanks for the response, however this does not address my concern.
This will be the second weekend after indoor hospitality reopening (assuming still going ahead) and on a bank
holiday weekend. We strongly anticipate for the night time economy within Brixton and other areas to be highly
popular. With that in mind how would both the premises manage this high demand?
I’m best emailed at this moment in time for any other questions.
Kind regards,
Mike Constable | PC 1596 AS
MPS Central South BOCU
Neighbourhoods Policing- Partnership & Prevention
Lambeth Licensing & Night Time Economy
Mobile
Team Email ASMailbox.LambethLicensing@met.police.uk
Address Civic Centre, 3rd Floor, 6 Brixton Hill, SW2 1EG

From: Thomas Dunn <TDunn@lambeth.gov.uk>
Sent: 23 March 2021 08:38
To: Arif Kokkoz <AKokkoz@lambeth.gov.uk>; Constable Mike - AS-CU <Mike.Constable@met.police.uk>
Cc: Pam Riley <PRiley@lambeth.gov.uk>; Darren Rumbelow
Subject: RE: Public Protection Objection - 21/00014 - Canova Hall, 250 Ferndale Road and Objection - 21/00015/TEN
: Cattivo, 207 Ferndale Road
Hi both,
As you would have seen, Darren has provided a further response below.
If this addresses your concerns, please let me know. Alternatively Darren has offered to discuss this matter over the
phone, contact number can be found in Darren’s signature.
Kind regards,
1

Page 62
Tom Dunn
Licensing Officer
London Borough of Lambeth
Public Protection and Regulatory Services
Resident Services
Lambeth Council
3rd Floor Civic Centre
6 Brixton Hill
London, SW2 1EG
Phone: 020 7926 1866
Email: tdunn@lambeth.gov.uk
Website: http://www.lambeth.gov.uk/licensing/
Items by post should be sent to:
London Borough of Lambeth, Public Protection, PO Box 734, Winchester SO23 5DG
Items for courier or hand delivery should be delivered to:
London Borough of Lambeth, Public Protection, Civic Centre, 6 Brixton Hill, LONDON, SW2 1EG

Public Access - for information on current licences and new applications please use the
following link http://planning.lambeth.gov.uk/onlineapplications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=LicencingApplication
We are working with our partners to build a #BetterLambeth - find out more at
http://love.lambeth.gov.uk/better

From: Darren Rumbelow
Sent: 18 March 2021 17:13
To: Thomas Dunn <TDunn@lambeth.gov.uk>
Cc: Pam Riley <PRiley@lambeth.gov.uk>; Arif Kokkoz <AKokkoz@lambeth.gov.uk>; Constable Mike - AS-CU
<mike.constable@met.police.uk>
Subject: RE: Public Protection Objection - 21/00014 - Canova Hall, 250 Ferndale Road and Objection - 21/00015/TEN
: Cattivo, 207 Ferndale Road
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize
the sender and know the content is safe.

Hi Tom,
Completely understand where you guys are coming from. The TEN is not for anything out of the ordinary or a large
scale event.
I am happy to send across our COVID RA and licencing policy again to anyone that may require it. This details how
we manage people in our venues but let me know if there is something specific you require more detail on? All
COVID restrictions will be managed, our management teams are well versed at this, we have had plenty of practice.
We simply wanted to open later due to the bank holiday. Incidentally we will be open until 1/2am the night prior to
this, and indeed the Friday prior as there are no restrictions on closing times as I understand it, the government has
removed the curfew after 17th of May, and our venues will all open to licenced hours from this date. The night in
question should carry no more risk than these trading sessions, and actually will be quieter in terms of footfall.

2

Page 63
Happy to discuss with any of those that may have objections to put their mind at rest, or if there really is a
contravention of the licencing objectives I will withdraw the applications if necessary.We obviously would not want
to put the public at risk.
Please pass my telephone number on to anyone that may wish to discuss. The last licencing hearing we attended for
a TEN, the committee were a little confused as to what the objections were, and why we had gone all the way to a
hearing.
Thanks for getting back to us. Let me know if there is anyone I can call, or if they prefer to call me?
Darren.

From: Thomas Dunn <TDunn@lambeth.gov.uk>
Sent: 18 March 2021 16:42
To: Darren Rumbelow
Cc: Pam Riley <PRiley@lambeth.gov.uk>; Arif Kokkoz <AKokkoz@lambeth.gov.uk>; Constable Mike - AS-CU
<mike.constable@met.police.uk>
Subject: Public Protection Objection - 21/00014 - Canova Hall, 250 Ferndale Road and Objection - 21/00015/TEN :
Cattivo, 207 Ferndale Road
Dear Darren,
Further to your additional information, we have received the following comments from the responsible authorities
who raised objections, outlining that they still have concerns.
Police
Furthermore there is no information provided on how they will manage their patrons especially as this will take place
in the early hours of the morning. There is the expectation that due to relaxation in restrictions there will be an
overwhelming amount of people wishing to go out. How will this be monitored and dealt with?
Public Protection
My objection's still stand as there is lack of information on how customers will be managed and Monitored.
We are in the process of arranging a Sub-Committee meeting for Members to consider your applications, however
in the meantime please let me know if there is any further information you wish to share with the responsible
authorities.
Kind regards,
3

Page 64
Tom Dunn
Licensing Officer
London Borough of Lambeth
Public Protection and Regulatory Services
Resident Services
Lambeth Council
3rd Floor Civic Centre
6 Brixton Hill
London, SW2 1EG
Phone: 020 7926 1866
Email: tdunn@lambeth.gov.uk
Website: http://www.lambeth.gov.uk/licensing/
Items by post should be sent to:
London Borough of Lambeth, Public Protection, PO Box 734, Winchester SO23 5DG
Items for courier or hand delivery should be delivered to:
London Borough of Lambeth, Public Protection, Civic Centre, 6 Brixton Hill, LONDON, SW2 1EG

Public Access - for information on current licences and new applications please use the
following link http://planning.lambeth.gov.uk/onlineapplications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=LicencingApplication
We are working with our partners to build a #BetterLambeth - find out more at
http://love.lambeth.gov.uk/better

From: Darren Rumbelow
Sent: 10 March 2021 12:40
To: Arif Kokkoz <AKokkoz@lambeth.gov.uk>; Constable Mike - AS-CU <mike.constable@met.police.uk>; Licensing
<XDESLICENSE@lambeth.gov.uk>
Cc: Bina Patel <BPatel@lambeth.gov.uk>; Daniel Vacciana <DVacciana@lambeth.gov.uk>; SNTLXFerndale@met.police.uk; ASMailbox.LambethLicensing@met.police.uk
Subject: RE: Public Protection Objection - 21/00014 - Canova Hall, 250 Ferndale Road and Objection - 21/00015/TEN
: Cattivo, 207 Ferndale Road
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize
the sender and know the content is safe.

Hi Guys,
We have received 2 objections.
Completely understand your concerns.
A few bits from our end.




There was no request for a capacity number or COVID RA, but we are obviously happy to provide for both,
for both applications. Please note these would be the maximum numbers (if every table was sat max 6
persons), it will likely however be around 30% less.
Canova Hall – 150 all seated
Cattivo – 120 all seated
All persons will be seated with table service only (as they have been for some time now and as per
legislation). I attach our original base COVID RA’s for you. This will have been changed several times at site
4

Page 65





as the government made changes to legislation. I can get to site on Friday to get you the latest version
signed by the team if you need it? This will have some amendments to these templates. The attached is the
original starting point from a year ago. It outlines the main points. We are well versed now in operating
track and trace, distancing, masks, sanitiser, and rule of 6.
We will be operating until 2am on all Friday and Saturdays in both sites after the 17th of May. As I
understand it, as it stands, there will be no restrictions on closing times after the 17th May? Clearly if this
changes it will supersede any TEN if granted. In short the 2 day’s previous to the Sunday applications we will
be trading to these hours, as we will be all other Friday and Saturdays after opening on the 17th May.
I appreciate that lots can change as can restrictions but assuming we are allowed to open with similar
distancing and numbers restrictions, we wanted to get the applications in for all our sites early as is usually
requested.

I attach our site licencing policy’s in addition.
If we can do anything to address any concerns please do let us know. Our objective at the moment is to try and save
some jobs and remain trading. I appreciate the circumstances are a little different this year, we have applied for
extensions every year for this date and have never before been refused. We are simply asking to trade this day to
Saturday hours. Happy to call anyone to discuss if required.
Many thanks indeed as always. Let me know if you require anything else.
Darren.

From: Arif Kokkoz <AKokkoz@lambeth.gov.uk>
Sent: 09 March 2021 17:17
To: Constable Mike - AS-CU <mike.constable@met.police.uk>; Licensing <XDESLICENSE@lambeth.gov.uk>; Darren
Rumbelow
Cc: Bina Patel <BPatel@lambeth.gov.uk>; Daniel Vacciana <DVacciana@lambeth.gov.uk>; SNTLXFerndale@met.police.uk; ASMailbox.LambethLicensing@met.police.uk
Subject: Public Protection Objection - 21/00014 - Canova Hall, 250 Ferndale Road
Hi All
Please find objection attached.

Regards
5

Page 66
Arif Kokkoz
Public Protection Officer
Public Protection, Assurance & Regulatory Services
Environment Directorate
Resident Services
London Borough of Lambeth
( 0207 926 5000 )
Akokkoz@lambeth.gov.uk
LB of Lambeth
Civic Centre
6 Brixton Hill
SW2 1EG
Items by post should be sent to:
London Borough of Lambeth,PO Box 734, Winchester SO23 5DG

Privacy Note
The London Borough of Lambeth (the “Council”) will make use of personal data it collects when issuing Notices for
the purpose of processing and enforcing them, and if required, to obtain recent address details to ensure that the
notice and any further notices are issued to the correct address. As a ‘public task’, the processing of personal data
related to the enforcement by the Council of a notice does not require your consent. The personal information
collected by the Council’s enforcement teams may be shared with its enforcement contractors, other government
agencies and 3rd parties to ensure appropriate enforcement actions, and for the prevention and detection of
crime. The personal information will be retained for 6 years following the closure of this case. If you are
concerned about how the council is using your personal data, you may find more information about your rights on
our website www.lambeth.gov.uk/privacy-notice.

Disclaimers apply - full details at www.lambeth.gov.uk/email-disclaimer
Disclaimers apply - full details at www.lambeth.gov.uk/email-disclaimer
NOTICE - This email and any attachments are solely for the intended recipient and may be confidential. If you have
received this email in error, please notify the sender and delete it from your system. Do not use, copy or disclose the
information contained in this email or in any attachment without the permission of the sender. Metropolitan Police
Service (MPS) communication systems are monitored to the extent permitted by law and any email and/or
attachments may be read by monitoring staff. Only specified personnel are authorised to conclude binding
agreements on behalf of the MPS by email and no responsibility is accepted for unauthorised agreements reached
with other personnel. While reasonable precautions have been taken to ensure no viruses are present in this email,
its security and that of any attachments cannot be guaranteed.
6

Page 67

Disclaimers apply - full details at www.lambeth.gov.uk/email-disclaimer
Disclaimers apply - full details at www.lambeth.gov.uk/email-disclaimer
NOTICE - This email and any attachments are solely for the intended recipient and may be confidential. If you have
received this email in error, please notify the sender and delete it from your system. Do not use, copy or disclose the
information contained in this email or in any attachment without the permission of the sender. Metropolitan Police
Service (MPS) communication systems are monitored to the extent permitted by law and any email and/or
attachments may be read by monitoring staff. Only specified personnel are authorised to conclude binding
agreements on behalf of the MPS by email and no responsibility is accepted for unauthorised agreements reached
with other personnel. While reasonable precautions have been taken to ensure no viruses are present in this email,
its security and that of any attachments cannot be guaranteed.

7

COVID19 Site specific risk assessment

Assessment carried out by: Darren Rumbelow
Date of next review: Ongoing Week 1 daily thereafter weekly
Date assessment was carried out: 29/6/20

Please Place a copy of this risk assessment in the staff area. All staff to sign the last page to state they have read and understand the measures
imposed to prevent the spread of COVID19. A brief summary of this RA will be posted on our website for our customers.
Additional Documentation for referral attached - COVID-19 secure guidance for employers, employees and the self-employed 23 June 2020

Risk assessment as per HSE recommended hospitality format.

Page 68

Company name: Cattivo– Ferndale Road Brixton

General Rules introduced

What action do you need to take to control the Who needs When is the Done
risks?
to carry out action
the action? needed by?




Maximum 12 persons per table
From 2 households max
Tables min 1M apart

Site
Managers all
levels

4th July
onwards

Current PPE Policy



For those that wish to wear a mask one will be
provided.
Staff can wear their own mask should they wish.
Gloves will only be worn for cleaning, cutlery or by
chefs where the food preparation requires gloves.
Constant hand washing is essential.

All staff

4th July
onwards

Management
teams / host

4th July
onwards



We will hold the details of at least one person on
each booking / table for the purpose of track and
trace should these details be required.
Details to be held for min 21 days.

Current Capacity’s






Ladies toilet persons at 1 time_________
Gentleman’s toilet persons at 1 time________
Cellar persons at 1 time____________
Managers office persons at 1 time _________

Management
team at site

4th July
onwards

Bar service



Persons may be seated at the bar only 1M apart
minimum.
Customers may not approach the bar to order food
and drinks.

Bar staff
Management
teams

4th July
onwards

Wash hands at least every 20 mins
Sanitise hands before taking any food and drink to
tables.
No embracing / touching / high 5’s
Maintain min 1M distancing from other staff and
customers wherever possible

All staff

4th July
onwards





Track and Trace Policy





General Instruction to all staff






Page 69

Current entry restrictions Summary

What are the hazards?

Who might be
harmed and
how?

What action do you need to take to control the Who needs When is the Done
risks?
to carry out action
the action? needed by?

Virus spread through touch surfaces
including.
Tables

Menus

Staff and customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19



Staff and customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19










Only leave menu postcards, coloured disks and
sanitiser on the tables.
Sanitise tables after every guest.
Sanitise tables again on guest arrival.
Hand sanitiser on all tables

Management /
Staff / Host

4th July
onwards

QR menu code on all tables for those that do not
want to touch a menu.
Menus available on request (to be cleaned before
every use)
Hand sanitiser on all tables.

Management /
Staff

4th July
onwards

Staff and customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19



Allocated staff member to clean on rotation every
hour during peak periods.

Management /
Staff

4th July
onwards

Door Handles / push handles

Staff and customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19



Allocated staff member to clean on rotation every
hour during peak periods.
Hand sanitiser on all tables.

Management /
Staff

4th July
onwards

Staff and customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19



Cleaned by 1 person only using new gloves and
boiling water.
Stacked on oval plates or cutlery pots.
Taken to table when required.
Not left on tables / pre set
Hand sanitiser on all tables

Management /
Staff

4th July
onwards

Staff and customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19




No use of grinders.
Sachets kept in ramekins to be provided on
customer request.
Hand sanitiser on all tables.

Management /
Staff

4th July
onwards

Cutlery

Salt / Pepper / Sugar










Page 70

Bannisters

What are the hazards?

Who might be
harmed and how?

What action do you need to take to control the
risks?

Who needs
to carry out
the action?

When is the
action
needed by?

Cleaned in pot washer and dishwasher above 80
deg.
Sanitation of hands before any item is delivered to
table.
Only touch the rim of each plate and avoid touching
the top section of any glass.
When delivering water to the table discard any
glass which has been touched on the rim.
Wash all water bottles after use in the glass
washer.

Management /
Staff

4th July
onwards

Done

Virus spread through touch surfaces
continued.
Crockery/ Glass wear

Staff and customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19







Staff and customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19



Use the probe wipes to clean down any laptop
before you use it.

Management /
Host / Staff

4th July
onwards

Tills

Staff and customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19



Use sanitiser spray to clean the tills in use in every
20 minutes.
Cleaning allocated person to clean all tills on
rotation.
Soap by all handwash sink.
Multiple sanitiser points.

Management /
Staff

4th July
onwards

Use the probe wipes to clean the card machine
before each use at the table Infront of the
customer.
Apple pay increased to £100
Contactless increased to £45
Business to be cashless until further review.
Hand sanitiser on all tables

Management /
Staff

4th July
onwards





Card Machines

Staff and customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19







Page 71

Laptops

What are the hazards?

Who might be
harmed and how?

What action do you need to take to control the
risks?

Who needs
to carry out
the action?

When is the
action
needed by?

Signage at front entrance to inform all persons of
venue rules.
Host and management teams to ask persons to
keep their distance.
Barriers to control any Q system where
appropriate.
Hand sanitisation point on entry for all persons
entering the premises.

Management /
Staff / Host

4th July
onwards

Signage displayed to remind customers of toilet
restricted capacities.
Q management outside toilets on busy sessions to
maintain distancing.
Hand sanitiser station positioned outside toilet
areas in addition to hand soap inside toilet areas.
Wash hands signage displayed
Toilets checked every 30 mins for soap and
sanitary conditions

Management /
Staff

4th July
onwards

Site plan with narrow pinch points attached to this
RA.
Staff asked to wait when traffic is high in these
areas.
Tables moved to alleviate where possible.

Management

4th July
onwards

Tables to have green and red markers displayed to
show tables in use and tables not in use.
Host to only seat tables where 1M distance is in
place.
All staff to be aware of this system.

Management /
Host

4th July
onwards

Customers shouting or displaying any symptoms
will be approached by a manager only.
Outcome of any interactions recorded in the
COVID19 incident report book.
Music played at lower levels.
No DJ’s to be employed until further notice.

Management
only

4th July
onwards

Done

Virus spread through close proximity
customer to customer
Entry

Customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19






Toilets

Customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19






Venue pinch points

Customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19





Table proximity

Customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19





Coughing / sneezing / talking loudly

Customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19






Page 72



What are the hazards?

Who might be
harmed and how?

What action do you need to take to control the
risks?

Who needs
to carry out
the action?

When is the
action
needed by?

Signage at front entrance to inform all persons of
venue rules.
Host and management teams to ask persons to
keep their distance.
Barriers to control any Q system where
appropriate.
Hand sanitisation point on entry for all persons.

Management /
staff / host

4th July
onwards

Staff will take orders from 1M distance.
Optional mask face covering can be worn by the
server.
Use of handheld tills to restrict EPOS system
sharing.
Optional Website QR code menus for the
customer.
Cutlery, salt and pepper and water glasses to be
bought to the table after seating

Management /
Staff

4th July
onwards

Staff will be reminded to be alert to circumstances
when passing customers and other staff in the
venue.
Customers that do not remain seated (except to
visit the toilet) will be approached by a member of
the management team.
Such incidents will be recorded in the COVID 19
incident book.

Management /
staff / host

4th July
onwards

Staff member to keep as much distance as
possible when presenting the card machine.
Probe wipes to be used to clean the machine
before customer use if not contactless.

Management /
Staff

4th July
onwards

Done

Virus spread through close proximity
staff to customer / customer to staff
On arrival / Entry

Staff and customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19






Whilst ordering

Staff and customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19






Whilst moving around the venue

Staff and customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19





Whilst Paying

Staff and customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19




Page 73



What are the hazards?

Who might be
harmed and how?

Coughing / sneezing / talking

Staff and customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19

What action do you need to take to control the risks?






Staff attending workplace with
COVID19 symptoms

Staff and customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19

What are the hazards?

Who might be
harmed and how?



Who needs
to carry out
the action?

When is the
action
needed by?

Management
only

4th July
onwards

Staff displaying or reporting any symptoms must be
sent home immediately for 14-day isolation

Management /
Staff

4th July
onwards

What action do you need to take to control the
risks?

Who needs
to carry out
the action?

Side to side working wherever possible.
Distances maintained 1M wherever possible.
Hand washing thoroughly every 20 minutes as a
minimum.
No embracing or touching of other persons in the
team.
Use separate stations per person.
Use separate tills per person.
Stick to staffroom capacity number.

Bar staff /
Management

4th July
onwards

Distances maintained 1M wherever possible.
Hand washing thoroughly every 20 minutes as a
minimum.
No embracing or touching of other persons in the
team.
Maintain distance of min 1 M whilst waiting to use
the till, collect food or drinks from the dispense
stations or entering the glasswash / pot wash
areas.
Stick to staffroom capacity number.
Clean tills and PDQ equipment before use.

Floor staff /
Management

4th July
onwards

When is the
action
needed by?

Virus spread through close proximity
staff to staff.
Bar

Staff Contracting or
passing COVID19









Floor

Staff Contracting or
passing COVID19









Done

Page 74

Customers shouting or displaying any symptoms
will be approached by a manager only.
Outcome of any interactions recorded in the
COVID19 incident report book.
Music played at lower levels.
No DJ’s to be employed until further notice.

Done

What are the hazards?

Who might be
harmed and how?

Staff Contracting or
passing COVID19






Staff Room

Staff Contracting or
passing COVID19




Staff Contracting or
passing COVID19




Cellar

When is the
action
needed by?

Done

Staff Contracting or
passing COVID19




Side to side working wherever possible.
Wherever possible stick to workstations and
minimise crossover.
Handwashing before and after each food task.
No embracing or touching of other persons in the
team.

Kitchen staff /
KP staff /
Managemnet

4th July
onwards

Limit entry to this area. For capacity see section 1
of RA above.
Ensure hand sanitation facilities and sanitiser in
this area at all times.

All staff

4th July
onwards

Limit entry to this area. For capacity see section 1
of RA above.
Ensure hand sanitation facilities and sanitiser in
this area at all times.

Management

4th July
onwards

Limit entry to this area. For capacity see section 1
of RA above.
Ensure hand sanitation facilities and sanitiser in
this area at all times.

All staff

4th July
onwards

Staff attending workplace with
COVID19 symptoms

Staff Contracting or
passing COVID19



Staff displaying or reporting any symptoms must be
sent home immediately for 14-day isolation

Management /
Staff

4th July
onwards

General

Staff Contracting or
passing COVID19



No phones on shift to prevent screen touching
whilst working.

All Staff

4th July
onwards

Whilst on breaks

Staff Contracting or
passing COVID19



Suitable area allocated where distance can be,
maintained.
Wash hands before and after breaks.
Adhere to same dining protocol as per customers.

All Staff

4th July
onwards




Page 75

Office

Who needs
to carry out
the action?



Virus spread through close proximity
staff to staff continued….
Kitchen

What action do you need to take to control the risks?

What are the hazards?

Who might be
harmed and how?

What action do you need to take to control the risks?

Who needs
to carry out
the action?

When is the
action
needed by?

Done

Bespoke Site-specific additions
*
*
*
*
*
*

*
*

*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*

Page 76

*

What are the hazards?

Who might be
harmed and how?

What action do you need to take to control the risks?

Who needs
to carry out
the action?

When is the
action
needed by?

Done

Additions and amendments to this RA
amendments and additions COVID19
post 4th July
*
*
*
*
*
*

*
*
*
*
*

*
*
*
*

Page 77

*

Staff RA Sign Off Section

Full Name

Sign

I confirm I have read and understand the contents
of this risk assessment – Yes / No

Date

Position

Page 78

Full Name

Sign

I confirm I have read and understand the contents
of this risk assessment – Yes / No

Date

Position

Page 79

Further comments if applicable:

Page 80

Albion and East
Cattivo
Safety, Security & Licensing
Policy
Index
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.
12.
13.
14.

Background
Review Periods
Security, search, seizure, arrest and safety
Drugs
Weapons
CCTV
Incident log
Crime scene management
Responsible alcohol retailing
Witness and victim support
Controlled exit and dispersal
Counterfeit bank notes – guidance
Promotions policy
Maintenance & Contractors

Capacity Street Level – 110
Capacity Below Ground -110
Total Capacity – 220
On Friday and Saturday evenings Door Staff will check Capacity regularly. If at any point
capacity is reached a waiting system will be managed by SIA door staff from the Ferndale
Road entrance with the line going towards the high street. Barriers will be in place to
contain those waiting. No entry will be allowed after 1am.

Page 81

1. BACKGROUND – SAFETY, SECURITY AND LICENSING
INTRODUCTION
The management at Cattivo are committed to protecting our employees,
customers and property through creating a safe and secure environment
that is drug, weapon and crime free. The legislation that governs operating
procedures and practice in licensed premises is found in the Licensing Act
2003.
FOUR OBJECTIVES OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003:
1. The prevention of crime and disorder
2. Public safety
3. The prevention of public nuisance
4. The protection of children from harm
The policy and guide that follow are designed to assist our managers and
their teams in understanding and proactively supporting Safety, Security off
and on our premises
IMPLICATIONS OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003
Police and local authorities have broad powers in ensuring there is
compliance with the Act. Below are some critical points:
 Rights of entry and inspection of licensed premises
 Powers to close premises
 Refusal of service to a person who appears drunk
 Refusal to serve under 18s
Rights of entry and inspection of licensed premises

A police officer or authorised Environmental Health Practitioners/Fire
Officer/Health and Safety Officer may at any time enter any premises if
they have reason to believe that the premises are being or about to be
used for a licensable activity.

A police officer may enter and search any premises at any time if they
have reason to believe that an offence under the Licensing Act has been
or is about to be committed. No search warrant is required.

Customs and Excise officers have the right to enter licensed premises and
remove goods liable to forfeiture. If entry is demanded at night, officers
must be accompanied by a police officer.

2

Cattivo Policy Version 3
Written By Darren Rumbelow
12.10.18

Page 82

Background Continued……
Power to close premises

Senior police officers and Environmental Health Practitioners have the
power to close a premise if:
 They believe that there is disorder at the premises
 Disorder is imminent and closure is necessary in the interests of public
safety
 They believe that a nuisance is being caused by noise from the premises
 They believe there is the production or supply of Class A drugs
 Public nuisance is being caused by noise coming from the premises
(Should you receive a request or be advised to close the premises by a
police officer below the rank of inspector you must first obtain authorization
from Darren Rumbelow.
Refusal of service to a person who appears to be drunk
An offence is committed if a personal license holder or anyone authorised to
sell alcohol knowingly sells alcohol to a person who is drunk or who appears
to be drunk. Other offenses are:
 Serving alcohol to the companion of a person who is drunk for the
drunken person’s consumption
 Allowing alcohol to be sold to a person who is drunk
 Obtaining alcohol for a person who is drunk.
Failure to comply with the above could result in a fixed penalty notice to the
person that served alcohol in any of the above circumstances.
Refusal to serve under 18s
It is an offence to purchase or attempt to purchase alcohol for anyone
under the age of 18 and knowingly allow the sale of alcohol to someone
under 18.
Acceptable forms of ID under current licensing laws are:
 Photo driving license
 Passport
We adhere to the Challenge 25 initiative so if a person looks under 25 they
will be asked for ID.

3

Cattivo Policy Version 3
Written By Darren Rumbelow
12.10.18

Page 83

2. Review Periods
CORE PRINCIPLES:

The General Manager or Operations director should review the below
policy not less than annually

Should the premises have a rise in non-serious incidents the policy should
be reviewed.

After any serious incident, the policy will be reviewed.

At the request of the licencing authority (police or council) the policy
should be reviewed.

It is the responsibility of all employees to ensure the implementation of
policy.

Albion and East and the DPS will work in partnership with the responsible
authorities to achieve the licensing objectives.

3 . SECURITY, SEARCH, SEIZURE, ARREST AND SAFETY
Security
 All door security will be SIA registered
o Badge status can be checked through the SIA website
www.sia.homeoffice.gov.uk for any member of door staff
who has not previously worked at the venue.
o The full 16-digit badge numbers are to be displayed on
security signing in sheet on arrival.
o Door staff will display SIA badges in a high visibility armband
at all times while on duty.
o The ratio should be as follows on weekend trading sessions.
o 0 – 250 = 2 members of door security
o 250 + customers = 3 members of door security
o More security staff may be employed on event nights or in
accordance with any risk assessment.
Security staff will
 Ensure customers entering and exiting the building do so in a safe and
orderly manner.

Ensure security team maintain their allocated stations

There will be on evenings with security personnel, a door register at all
times. Such register to include the name, registration number and
agency supplying security team, as well as recording the date, security
duty times, entry refusals and ejection log, such information will be
made available to the police on request.

4

Cattivo Policy Version 3
Written By Darren Rumbelow
12.10.18

Page 84

Security search seizure continued….
Search
 A random search policy of all customers may be implemented
depending on prevailing conditions, risk assessment or police advice.
 Where a search policy exists, it is our policy to publicise that persons
entering the premises are liable (with their consent) to be searched
and that agreement to search is a condition of entry.
 All searches will be recorded on CCTV.
 Any search or subsequent detainment shall comply with the Human
Rights Act 1998. Persons refusing to consent will be denied entry.
Additionally, the police may be called if drugs or weapons are
suspected or found
Seizure
If drugs or weapons are found during a search the following procedures
will be adhered to:
 The person in possession will be given the opportunity to explain (if
there are any doubts the police should be called).
 The duty manager or DPS must be informed.
 Numbered bags will be used to safely and securely store drugs or
weapons in the safe.
 Whenever possible the bag should be sealed and signed in the
presence of the person from whom the drugs or weapons were seized.
 It is good practice to bring the finding to the attention of a colleague
immediately for corroboration.
 Management should never handle drugs without wearing protective
gloves.
 All seizures are to be fully recorded by the CCTV system.
 All seizures are to be entered into the Drugs Register, counter signed by
another member of management / security, sealed in a bag and
dropped into the safe.
 At the earliest opportunity, this should be handed to the police / taken
to the local police station.
 An incident report is to be filled out in full in all circumstances.
Safety
 The DPS will actively participate in any PubWatch scheme where one
exists.
 The capacity of the premises will be advised by the responsible
authorities. A counting scheme will be operated on busy evenings and
this number will not be exceeded.
 The external area shall be regularly checked by SIA door staff when on
duty and staff / glass collection staff in the evenings.

5

Cattivo Policy Version 3
Written By Darren Rumbelow
12.10.18

Page 85

4. DRUGS
Our seizure is in line with the Misuse of Drugs Act 1971.
Managers and Door staff have a level of discretion when dealing with the
possession of a controlled substance.
Seizure
If any substances are found they should be seized, placed into an evidence
bag, sealed, signed and place into the at the venue. No entry will be
allowed to any person found in possetion of drugs.
It is felt that three (3) or four (4) wraps or pills, or up to two (2) bags of
Cannabis may constitute personal use. More than that may constitute
possession with intent to supply, if a mixture and quantity of controlled
substances is found Police would expect to be contacted. Suspects should
be detained by door staff until Police arrive as long as it is safe for them to
do so.
Retention
A written record will be made in the venue incident book. This will include
Date, Time, Signature of finder, a brief description of the suspect (or a
picture from CCTV) and if in the venue safe signature of the manager.
Collection
An e mail will be sent to police for small amounts notifying them of any
confiscation.

5. WEAPONS





It is our aim to prevent any weapon (guns, knives, CS spray and other
offensive weapons) being taken into our premises.
It is our policy to ensure employees receive training in how to safely
deal with customers who have been identified carrying a weapon
and thereafter the safe storage until the police are notified and take
charge of the scene
Any weapons should be stored within the safe while police are
contacted

Knives
Can only be carried in public if they have a folding blade of less then three
inches, people carrying such a knife commit no offence; however, our
policy is to deny admittance to people carrying these items.
6

Cattivo Policy Version 3
Written By Darren Rumbelow
12.10.18

Page 86

Weapons Continued….
CS Gas
Although legal in other countries it is classified as a firearm in the UK. Many
tourists carry CS gas for self-defense believing it to be legal. Any CS gas
found should be handled carefully and the police informed.
Offensive Weapons
Adapted articles can be more difficult to detect. Such as sharpened pens,
belt buckles and jewelry. If any of these items give you cause for concern,
then access to the bar should be denied.
Guns
If found during search customers must be denied access and the police
called immediately.
If a gun is found it must be (as far as safely possible) left where it is (it may be
part of a crime scene – see crime scene management). Once the police
have arrived they will take charge of the scene and preserve evidence.
Weapons should not be handled; if unpreventable protective gloves are to
be worn.

6. CCTV
 All managers are to be trained in the operation and usage off CCTV
system.
 A person with understanding in the operation and usage off CCTV system
shall be onsite during trading hours or in extreme cases will be able to
contact a capable operative.
 We will, as deemed appropriate, ensure that CCTV is installed (to
responsible authority requirements) to both interior and exterior areas and
maintain one month’s history of recordings.
 We will ensure CCTV systems are operated in accordance with the Data
Protection Act 1998.
 The CCTV system will be maintained in good working order. Any faults will
be rectified without delay and recorded in the incident log.
 Should there be a delay in repairing the system we will notify the
appropriate authorities.
 CCTV will be operational on a continual 24hr period
 If any CCTV footage is taken from the premises by any of the responsible
authorities a receipt must be obtained and entered into the incident
book.
 CCTV instructions are to be displayed within the vicinity of the CCTV unit

7

Cattivo Policy Version 3
Written By Darren Rumbelow
12.10.18

Page 87

7. INCIDENT LOG
A register of known incidents that occur on or near the premises will be kept.
This log will include:












All crime reported.
All ejections or barring of patrons
Any complaints received relating to Licensing Policy.
Any incidents or disorders.
Seizure of drugs or offensive weapons and their location.
Any faults on the CCTV.
Any visit by a responsible authority.
Date, time and description of the incident and persons involved (if
known).
The time and date if reported to the police and any follow up
conclusion from the incident.
The register will be available for the police to inspect.
Any CCTV footage given to the police (a receipt must be obtained)

8. CRIME SCENE MANAGEMENT
 In the event of any serious incident taking place we will treat this, the
immediate surrounding area and any other associated area as a crime
scene. The area will be cordoned off and every effort be made to
preserve it.
 All access to the area with the exception of attending to any victim will
be denied. Contact details of witnesses will be taken and suspects
detained if it is safe to do so.
 As soon as it is practicably reasonable management will complete a log
of events in the incident logbook.
*Note There could be more than one crime scene: An example of this would
be if a person were assaulted at the bar (crime scene 1). That person goes
to the toilet to attend to the injury and drips blood (crime scene 2).
Consideration must be given to crowd control and also consider whether or
not all or part of the venue can stay open. Any item, no matter how small
can provide vital evidence. In serious cases it is essential that items such as
cigarette butts and glasses are preserved. Remember that all customers and
staff are potential witnesses.

8

Cattivo Policy Version 3
Written By Darren Rumbelow
12.10.18

Page 88

9. RESPONSIBLE ALCOHOL RETAILING
It is our intention to ensure we promote an environment of responsible
drinking and support sensible drinking messages.












We operate a Challenge 25 policy, any person who appears to be
under the age of 25 will be asked to provide an acceptable form of
identification (Passport or photo driving license) to prove they are over
18 years old. These checks either successful or no will be recorded on
the till system.
All alcohol service staff will be trained on the above. Records will be
held to demonstrate the training and a session will be held on the
process every 6 months for all staff.
No alcohol will be dispensed directly into a person’s mouth
Small measures of spirits (25ml) and wine (125ml) shall be available at
all times
Free tap water will be provided at all times.
We operate a strict door policy to refuse entry to any persons who
appear drunk
o Any such refusals by bar staff will be recorded on our till system.
Every effort to ensure any person who is asked to leave the premises is
dealt with and helped in a responsible manner.
Dancing on tables is prohibited.
The company will ensure that no promotion of alcohol that could be
deemed irresponsible will be undertaken.
No off sales as takeaway will be permitted at any time and no drinks
will be allowed to be taken

10. WITNESS AND VICTIM SUPPORT
If in incident occurs, we will ensure:
 Appropriate emergency services called in a timely manner if appropriate
 Any witness or victim will be given details of the appropriate support if
appropriate.
 Victims of theft should be given support and assistance in phoning credit
card companies to report theft and cancel their cards.
Generally, victims will fall into one of four areas: harassment, drunkenness
theft and drugs. In every instance we will ensure victims are dealt with
sympathetically and in a planned and structured way.
9

Cattivo Policy Version 3
Written By Darren Rumbelow
12.10.18

Page 89

Witness and victim support continued…….
Harassment
To deal with harassment in a professional way, you should do the following:
 See if the person needs any medical attention.
 Take to a private or quieter part of the bar.
 Investigate the incident with all parties concerned.
 Ask the person responsible for the harassment to leave the premises (call
door team if necessary and available).
 The victim should be helped in every possible way, which may include
arranging a taxi, phoning a friend, relative or colleague.
Drunkenness
The signs to look for are customers talking too loudly, slurring their words,
becoming excitable and possibly unstable on their feet.
The following steps should be taken:
 Avoid victim feeling foolish or embarrassed. Stop alcohol intake
immediately and offer water.
 Ascertain level of comprehension by asking for their name and who they
are with.
 The victim should be helped in every possible way, which may include
arranging a taxi, phoning a friend, relative or colleague.
Theft
If a customer claims they’ve been a victim of theft, you should do the
following:
 Ensure the person is not injured.
 If need be, take them to a quiet area away from the public as the person
maybe visibly upset (if this happens ensure your own safety and possibly
go in twos).
 Give the customer use of a phone so they can call either a friend, family
member or work colleague and call credit card companies and their
bank if need be to cancel any cards.
 The site will hold a list of numbers to assist in this circumstance.
 Make a note of the theft / loss in the lost property log and complete the
report making certain you get all their details.
 The victim should be helped in every possible way, which may include
arranging a taxi, phoning a friend, relative or colleague.
 Advise customer of the local police contact so that they can report the
crime, record the crime number in this instance.

10

Cattivo Policy Version 3
Written By Darren Rumbelow
12.10.18

Page 90
Witness and victim support continued…….
Injury
If a customer or employee is injured in any way through cuts, sprains etc the
level of injuring should be ascertained
 Provision of immediate first aid
 If more serious the ambulance service should be called.
 Accident reports will be completed in all such incident
Drugs
If you suspect someone of taking drugs ensure your own safety as well as
theirs. The signs of drug taking in general are uncontrollable nodding, can’t
focus their eyes, very slurred speech, erratic or shallow breathing or very
heavy vomiting. If you suspect someone of having taken drugs, ensure the
following steps are followed:
 If the person is conscious ask them or a friend what they have taken.
 The victim should be helped in every possible way, which may include
arranging a taxi, phoning a friend, relative or colleague.
 If unconscious cordon off area and call an ambulance and put person in
recovery position is possible.
 Assign a person to stay with the victim until the ambulance arrives.
 Record all details in the incident book.

12 Dispersal Smoking area and Crowd Management.









Smoking and Crowd Management
A smoking area will be created on Friday and Saturday evenings from
9.30pm.
The outside chairs will be used as barriers to contain those smoking.
The area will not go beyond the first pillar on Ferndale road from the
Ferndale Road Entrance. This area is outlined on the premises license.
At no point will there be any more than 10 persons in the smoking area at
any one time.
All other outside furniture will be rendered unusable and stacked from
9.30 to 10pm at the latest as per the license condition.
From 10pm the SIA door staff member positioned on the corner entrance
with the double doors, will direct all smokers to the Ferndale Road
entrance for entry, exit and smoking, except in the event of
overcrowding or safety concerns at this entrance or in the event of an
emergency.
Doors and windows will be kept closed after 23.00 except for persons
arriving, leaving or using the smoking area.

11

Cattivo Policy Version 3
Written By Darren Rumbelow
12.10.18

Page 91
Dispersal
We will operate a Dispersal Policy which has been formulated to ensure that
the business does not have an adverse impact on neighboring premises,
businesses or residents. We are conscious that Brixton Road is a very busy
road, day and night, with both local businesses and residents in the
immediate vicinity on Ferndale road and indeed Nursery road. Ferndale
Road itself is a possible route to and from the O2 Academy.
If the policy is revised all team and Management will be made aware and
fully trained in any new procedures.
A key element to ensuring that customers behave in a responsible and
socially aware manner as they leave is the way in which they are managed,
whilst they are in our premises and more significantly during their departure.
There are a number of pro-active measures we will exercise towards and at
the end of the evening to encourage the efficient, controlled and safe
dispersal of our customers during our closing period, which are outlined in
our pro-active Dispersal Policy below.
PRO-ACTIVE DISPERSAL
OUR AIM
To ensure the safe, orderly and quiet dispersal of all our customers through
our well trained and well-informed team. At all times our team will be calm,
friendly yet firm when required. They will be well informed with information
about local transport services – where they are located and the operating
times – to ensure all customers not only disperse quietly and effectively but
also get home safely.
POLICY
1.
At the end of the evening Management and staff (SIA door staff if
on duty) will assist with the orderly and gradual dispersal of
customers.
2.
The music will be limited via a soundweb device at a level agreed
with the local authority, and will not exceed this limit at any time.
During the last 30 minutes of opening and after the bar has
stopped serving alcohol, any music will be softer and the volume
reduced gradually to encourage the gradual dispersal of
customers.
3.
During the last 10 minutes of trading the lighting levels will be
increased gradually to encourage the gradual dispersal of
customers.
4.
We will display notices requesting our customers to leave quietly,
and in an orderly manner out of consideration to our neighbors.

12

Cattivo Policy Version 3
Written By Darren Rumbelow
12.10.18

Page 92
Dispersal continued.
5.

6.

7.
8.

9.

10.
11.

12.

13.

There will be at least one Manager who will take direct
responsibility for the dispersal at the end of each evening,
dedicating the last 30 minutes of trading to being front of house
ensuring customers are encouraged to leave quietly and in an
orderly fashion. They will work in tandem with the Door Team (if on
duty) to ensure this happens.
Customers will be encouraged to finish their drinks and progress to
the exit, removing all glasses and bottles before they reach the
exit. This gradual dispersal has the aim of ensuring that customers
leave quietly and there are no bottle-necks either at the exit or on
the pavements outside.
During the last 30 minutes of trading, customers will be
encouraged to use the toilets if needed (located in the
basement).
Customers who wish to depart by taxi will have access to local taxi
numbers to book their taxi before they leave, and arrange pick up
either at the local taxi office 16 Bedford Road Brixton 0207 720 1331. This
will ensure we minimize taxis drawing up outside the venue, which
allows a clear route for other traffic and disperses customers and
removes potential disturbance for residents.
The Management and Door Team will draw attention of all exiting
customers to the displayed notices encouraging them to leave
quietly and in an orderly manner out of consideration to our
neighbor’s. Exit will be via the Fernadle Road entrance only except
in the event of overcrowding for safety reasons.
The Management and Door Team will actively encourage
dispersal to the local transport links Including the night tube on
weekends. The tube station is a short walk away.
The Management and Door Team will pay particular attention to
actively encouraging movement away from the venue to ensure
there are no bottle necks on the pavement or potential gathering
of persons.

The Door Team will be employed for 30 minutes after closure to
ensure all customers leave the premises quietly and there is no
congregating outside the venue, and to check the premises in full
for clearance. In the absence of SIA registered door staff this
activity will be undertaken by the manager on duty.
There is full CCTV coverage of the entrance which will run at all
times and carries a 30-day recording period.

14.
13

Cattivo Policy Version 3
Written By Darren Rumbelow
12.10.18

Page 93
WORKING LOCALLY
Albion and East and the Management of the venue will ensure there is a
strong working relationship with the local police guaranteeing complete
awareness and transparency of our policy at all times.
We will attach the utmost importance to the careful investigation and
prompt resolution of any complaint made in respect of the running of the
premises. Emphasis will be placed on building and maintaining close
relationships with neighbor’s. Contact details of the Management team will
always be available to our residential community, and every effort will be
made to handle any complaints in a timely and considerate fashion.
NIGHT BUS
The venue is situated close to public transport that operates 24 hours a day.
Notwithstanding a potential 24-hour tube service in future, the venue is also
very close to a number of Night Bus stops which give access to 24-hour bus
routes in all directions as follows;
TAXIS
Patrons will be encouraged to hail any black Taxis to side streets for pick up.
Will be moved away from the front of the premises whilst awaiting UBER
arrivals and details of the local taxi company will be provided if necessary.

14

Cattivo Policy Version 3
Written By Darren Rumbelow
12.10.18

Page 94

13. COUNTERFEIT BANK NOTES – GUIDANCE



All members of staff are to be trained in how to identify counterfeit
bank notes.
The training will ensure that all members of staff fully understand what
to do should they suspect they are in receipt of a counterfeit note,
what to look out for and how to check the note.

Management Action
 Any suspicious bank note is to be retained and placed in a separate
bag in the safe.
 The operations Director is to be notified and the counterfeit currency
collected and either destroyed or handed to our Bank (Barclays)
 Should several notes be taken the local police should be informed
and the notes be handed to them along with any CCTV footage of
those using the currency.

14. PROMOTIONS POLICY






All promotional artwork and plans should be submitted for approval
prior to any event taking place or printing of any artwork – no artwork
may contain images or text that encourage or condone the
irresponsible consumption of alcohol.
No promotion may run if it lowers the price of alcohol to fifty pence or
below per unit. The minimum retail value for 1 unit of alcohol across
our estate is fifty pence with no exceptions.
No alcohol shall be poured directly in to the mouth
Tap water shall be made freely available at no charge for all of our
guests.

Calculating Units
To calculate the units of alcohol in a drink multiply the volume of the drink (in
millilitres) by its percentage and divide by 1000 e.g. 1 pint of beer (568ml) at
4% would be 568*4/1000 = 2.27 units of alcohol.
See www.drinkaware.co.uk for information on products and units of alcohol.
In order to calculate your unit price simply divide the amount of units by the
selling price of the product.
Competitor Analysis
The management will monitor the sale price of alcohol for Tesco and other
supermarket products on occasion. This can be used as a benchmarking
tool when establishing the sale price for any discount product if necessary.

15

Cattivo Policy Version 3
Written By Darren Rumbelow
12.10.18

Page 95

15. MAINTENANCE & CONTRACTORS



Only nominated central contractors will carry out yearly electrical
inspections, to include fire alarm and emergency lights .
A nominated fire safe company shall be contracted to carry out
yearly fire extinguisher inspections.

Signed DPS_________________________________________________
Print________________
Date______________________
Signed Assistant Manager ___________________________________
Print________________
Date______________________
Signed Manager Other_____________________________________
Print________________
Date______________________
Signed Head Door________________________________________________________

Print________________

Date______________________

16

Cattivo Policy Version 3
Written By Darren Rumbelow
12.10.18

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 97
London Borough of Lambeth
Licensing Department
3rd Floor, Civic Centre
6 Brixton Hill
London SW2 1EG
Tel: 020 7926 6108
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk/licensing/

Annex D

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence
Premises Licence Number

Prem2153

Version Reference

18/00161/PRMNEW

Part 1 – Premises Details
Postal address of premises including Post Town & Post Code, or if none, ordnance survey
map reference or description
Cattivo
201 - 207 Ferndale Road
London
SW9 8BA
Telephone number
Where the licence is time limited the dates
Licensable activities authorised by the licence
Recorded Music (indoors only)
Late Night Refreshment (indoors only)
Sale by Retail of Alcohol (on and off the premises)

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities
Recorded Music
Sunday - Thursday
Friday & Saturday

23:00 - 00:00
23:00 - 02:00

From the start time on New Year's Eve to 02:00 on New Year's Day.
An additional hour when British Summer Time commences.
Terminal hour to be 02:00 on Sundays before Bank Holiday Mondays.
Late Night Refreshment
Sunday - Thursday
Friday & Saturday

23:00 - 00:00
23:00 - 02:00

From the start time on New Year's Eve to 02:00 on New Year's Day.
An additional hour when British Summer Time commences.
Terminal hour to be 02:00 on Sundays before Bank Holiday Mondays.
Sale by Retail of Alcohol
Sunday - Thursday
Friday & Saturday
Premises Licence

10:00 - 00:00
10:00 - 02:00
A-1

Page 98

From the start time on New Year's Eve to 02:00 on New Year's Day.
An additional hour when British Summer Time commences.
Terminal hour to be 02:00 on Sundays before Bank Holiday Mondays.
Opening Hours (Non-standard & Seasonal)
From the start time on New Year's Eve until the finish time on New Year's Day.

The opening hours of the premises
Sunday - Thursday
Friday & Saturday

10:00 - 00:30
10:00 - 02:30

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off supplies
On and off supplies

Premises Licence

A-2

Page 99
Part 2
Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of
premises licence
Albion & East Ltd
Hyde Park House
5 Manfred Road
LONDON
SW15 2RS

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where
applicable)
Registered Company Number

08372794

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises
licence authorises the supply or the sale by retail of alcohol
Darren Rumbelow

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated
premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises the supply or sale by retail of
alcohol
Personal Licence No:

Licensing Authority: Broxbourne Borough Council

Signed:
On behalf of the Head
of Community Safety
Dated: 20th November 2018

Premises Licence

A-3

Page 100
Annex 1 – Mandatory conditions
MANDATORY CONDITIONS (Alcohol - on)
Condition A1
No supply of Alcohol may be made under the Premises Licence:
(a)
(b)

At a time when there is no Designated Premises Supervisor in respect of the Premises
Licence; or
At a time when the Designated Premises Supervisor does not hold a Personal Licence or his
Personal Licence is suspended.

Condition A2
Every supply of alcohol under the Premises Licence must be made, or authorised by a person who
holds a Personal Licence.
Condition A3
(1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or
participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.
(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities,
or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of
alcohol for consumption on the premises—
(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or encourage,
individuals to—
(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on the
premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or
supply alcohol), or
(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise)
(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee to
the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries a significant
risk of undermining a licensing objective;
(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward the
purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner which carries a
significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;
(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the vicinity
of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social
behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner;
(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that other
person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).
Condition A4
The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers
where it is reasonably available.
Condition A5
(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age
verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.
Premises Licence

A-4

Page 101
(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the
supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.
(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years
of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being
served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and
either—
(a)
a holographic mark, or
(b)
an ultraviolet feature.
Condition A6
The responsible person must ensure that—
(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises
(other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or
supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures—
(i) beer or cider: ½ pint;
(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and
(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml;
(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is available to
customers on the premises; and
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to be
sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available.
Additional Mandatory Licensing Conditions, Minimum Drinks Pricing:
1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the
premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.
2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1
(a) "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979
(b) "permitted" price is the price found by applying the formula - P=D+(DxV) where:
(i) P is the permitted price,
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the
date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax
were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;
(c) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises
licence
(i) the holder of the premises licence,
(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence;
(d)"relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club
premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which
enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and
(e)"value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act
1994.
3. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken
to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.
4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2
on a day ("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on the next day ("the second
day") as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.
Premises Licence

A-5

Page 102
(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol
which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

Premises Licence

A-6

Page 103
Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule
1.

Staff must ensure that all empty glasses and bottles are promptly cleared away from the public
areas.

2.

The premises will have a minimum of two SIA security staff on duty at the premises on Friday and
Saturday from 21:00 hours until 30 minutes after the premises close.

3.

Customers temporarily leaving the premises to smoke as from 23:00 hours, shall not be permitted to
take drinks with them.

4.

Sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises are limited to patrons seated immediately outside
the premises at table and chairs set out for that purpose and deliveries (sealed containers only).

5.

There shall be no off sales from the premises after 23:00 hours.

6.

Off sales of alcohol are not permitted with/as take away.

7.

A CCTV system covering areas inside and outside of the premises should be operating and
maintained according to police recommendations with properly maintained log arrangements and
recordings/tapes to be kept for 30 days.

8.

CCTV system is to comply with the Data Protection Act 1998 and must be working and recording
correctly when the venue is open to the public.

9.

A staff member from the venue who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system must be
on the premises at all times that the venue is open to the public. This staff member must
immediately be able to show police or local authority officer's recent data or footage on request.

10.

The premises are to use all reasonable efforts to provide police and local authority officers with
recordings from the CCTV system on request (e.g. by supplying recordings on DVD, CD or tape).

11.

Erect Prominent and legible signage to the premises advising patrons to be mindful of the
neighbouring residents and to disperse from the premises in a timely manner without making undue
noise or engaging in anti-social behaviour.

12.

The premises shall actively link with the Business Crime Reduction Partnership (BCRP), its linked
radio scheme and the intranet site.

13.

Substantial food and non-intoxicating beverages, including drinking water, shall be available in all
parts of the premises where alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises.

14.

An incident/refusal book will be maintained and used at the premises. Upon request, it will be
readily available for inspection by the police or the local authority officer.

15.

Before the use commences, the Premises Licence Holder shall install a suitable automatic sound
limiting device to the premises to control all licensable amplified music, speech and vocals to the
premises. The device shall be pre-approved by Noise Officer's and the acceptable level of noise shall
be determined and set to Officer's specifications and thereafter maintained at the approved level for
the duration of use.

16.

After 23:00 all doors and windows to be kept closed whilst regulated entertainment is taking place
except for the ingress and egress of persons or in the event of an emergency.

17.

All tables and chairs within the premises to remain in the premises at all times.

18.

No speakers shall be placed outside.

19.

No customers shall be allowed to leave the premises whilst carrying open drinking vessels.

Premises Licence

A-7

Page 104

20.

Public transport should be actively promoted at all times as primary form of transport to and from
the premises. Accordingly, use of private vehicles shall be discouraged. Details of the tube, rail, bus
network and reputable licensed taxi-cab operators to be provided within the premises.

21.

Posters shall be displayed with contact numbers of local licensed cab/taxi firms. This shall also
include Cabwise number/app as well.

22.

Management/staff shall proactively monitor the conduct and behaviour of patrons to ensure no
noisy, rowdy or anti-social behaviour. Those patrons deemed to be engaging in such behaviour shall
be asked to disperse from the premises and area quietly.

23.

All patrons shall be discouraged from socialising/loitering on the public highway at all times.

24.

The premises shall undertake routine litter picks to the public highway frontage at intermittent
intervals during the business trading hours and at the terminal hour when all patrons have vacated
the premises to remove all discarded litter, food waste/packaging, drinking vessels and cigarette
butts.

25.

The licensee shall implement a robust dispersal policy from 23:00hrs to ensure all patrons leave the
premises and vicinity as quietly and speedily as possible. Ensure that patrons are verbally advised by
management/staff upon leaving to be mindful of the neighbouring residents so as not to disturb the
peace.

26.

There shall be no emptying of bottle banks between the hours of 23:00 - 08:00hrs Monday to
Sunday.

27.

All deliveries and collections shall take place between the hours 06:00 - 23:00 Monday to Sunday.

28.

All staff members engaged, or to be engaged, in selling alcohol on the premises shall receive full
training pertinent to the Licensing Act, specifically in regard age restricted sales, and the refusal of
sales to persons believed to be under the influence of alcohol or drugs. Induction training must be
completed and refresher training thereafter at intervals of no more than six months. All restricted
sales training undertaken by staff members shall be fully documented and signed by the employee
and the DPS. All training records shall remain on site and be made available upon request to the
Responsible Authorities.

29.

Operate a check 25 policy with signage informing all customers who look under 25 they will be
asked for photo ID to prove they are over 18.

30.

Only accept a passport, driving licence or Pass card as proof of age. (as well as HM Forces ID cards)

31.

To maintain a refusals register and record any instances of refused service because of age/no ID, or
drunkenness and produced on request.

32.

To be aware of proxy sales where an adult will buy alcohol for a child.

Premises Licence

A-8

Page 105
Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority
Licensing Sub-Committee 5th October 2018
1. The premises licence holder shall ensure that the outside tables and chairs are rendered unusable
from 22:00 hours each night;
2. There shall be no entry to the Premises after 01:00 hours;
3. The smoking area is to be located in the area marked by black hatching on the plan annexed to the
premises licence;
4. The queuing and smoking areas are to be managed by SIA staff;
5. A minimum of 80 seats will be maintained on the ground floor of the Premises at all times. No seats
or tables are to be removed from the ground floor save in the event of a private function booking;
6. The maximum capacity of the premises will be 110 persons on each floor;
7. There shall be no live music on the ground floor;
8. Doors and windows are to be kept closed at all times that licensable activity is taking place except
for ingress and egress or in case of emergency so as to minimise noise disturbance from any
source;
9. No more than ten patrons will be permitted within the smoking area at any one time
10. Patrons shall not be permitted to queue or wait outside the premises in Nursery Road. Any queuing
or waiting area must be between located between Brixton Road and Ferndale Road.
11. This licence shall not take effect until such time as the existing premises licence (Prem1858) has
been surrendered and cannot be reinstated pursuant to s.50 Licensing Act 2003.

Premises Licence

A-9

Page 106
Annex 4 – Plans
Ground Floor

Premises Licence

A - 10

Page 107
Lower Floor

Premises Licence

A - 11

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5b

Page 109

Licensing SubCommittee Report
Item No:

2

Title of Report:

Canova Hall
250 Ferndale Road, London
SW9 8FR

Applicant:

Metropolitan Police Service & Public Protection

Application Type:

Temporary Event Notices (TEN)

Application Date:

4th March May 2021

Ward:

Ferndale

Premises Type:

Bar

Policy Context:

Lambeth Statement of Licensing Policy 2019 - 2024

Report Author:

Mrs Pamela Riley

Contact Details:

020 7926 6164

Application
Summary:

This is an application by the Metropolitan Police Service and
Public Protection for a counter notice to be issued against a
Temporary Event Notices.

priley@lambeth.gov.uk

Page 110

Consultation Information:
Department(s) or
Organisation(s)

Consulted (Y/N)

Date Response
Received

Comments
summarized in report
(Y/N)

Applicant

09/03/21

Y

Applicant

09/03/21

Y

Internal
Noise Service
External
Police Licensing Unit
Policy implications:
Licensing Objectives (chapter 5, pages 9 to 15 of the policy and appendices 1 to 4,
pages 41 to 45)
The Licensing Objectives engaged by this application are:Prevention of Public Nuisance,
Prevention of Crime & Disorder
Temporary Events (policy 6, pages 23 to 25)
Where a TEN is given for a premises which holds an existing premises licence, it is expected
that any existing conditions on the licence will be maintained for the purposes of the TEN.

1. Application:
1.1

Mr Darren Rumbelow on 4th March 2021 gave the Licensing Authority a Temporary
Event Notice (TEN) under section 100 of the Licensing Act 2003.

1.2

The Notice will authorise the following licensable activities:



sale by retail of alcohol
late night refreshment

1.3

It is proposed to provide these activities to no more than 200 persons at the premises
as follows - 30th and 31st May 2021; 23:30 - 02:00 hours

1.4

A copy of the notice is attached to this report as Annex A

2. Representations:
2.1 An objection notice was received from the Metropolitan Police Service & Public
Protection on 9th March 2021. The objections engage with the licensing objectives of
the prevention of public nuisance and prevention of crime and disorder.
2.2 Both responsible authorities are concerned that the request for an increase in the
premises hours will facilitate further alcohol consumption, which could lead to an
increase in criminality and anti-social behaviour.

Page 111

2.3 The last date for giving an objection notice was 9th March 2021.
2.4 A copy of the objections have been provided to the applicant and are appended to this
report as Annex B.
2.5 In response to the objections made by the authorities, the applicant has provided
supporting information. This information hasn’t addressed the concerns of the Police
and Public Protection. A copy of the additional information and correspondence
between the notice giver and both responsible authorities can be seen at Annex C.

3. Current Licence:
3.1

There is a valid premises licence in place for this address, licence number Prem2011
which authorises the following licensable activities to the stated hours:
Late Night Refreshment
Sunday - Wednesday 23:00 - 00:00
Thursday 23:00 - 01:00
Friday & Saturday 23:00 - 02:00
Sale by Retail of Alcohol (On and Off)
Sunday - Wednesday 10:00 - 23:30
Thursday 10:00 - 00:30
Friday & Saturday 10:00 - 01:30
None Seasonal Timings:
Thursday (01:30 subject to condition 44)
Friday and Saturday (02:30 subject to condition 44)

3.2

This licence was granted on 21st April 2017 and was transferred to the current licence
holder Albion & East Ltd on 12 July 2017. There is a pending application to amend the
DPS from Daniel Westaway to Kamila Wasilewska which was received on 10th March
2021.

3.3

A copy of the premises licence can be found at Annex D.

4. Background History:
4.1

This will be the first TENs applied for in the past 12 months.

4.2

The premises are located within Brixton Major Town Centre. The area is well
serviced by public transport, with bus links, the underground and railway services,
some of which are available 24 hours.

5. Observations:
5.1

The parts of the Statutory Guidance (April 2018) relevant to this application and the
representations received are Chapters:
7 – Temporary Event Notices;
9 –Determining Applications;
15 – Regulated Entertainment.

Page 112

5.2

The parts of the Statement of Licensing Policy that are relevant to this application and the
representations are Sections:
5. The Licensing Objectives
5.11. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder
5.20. Public Safety
5.27. Prevention of Public Nuisance
Policy 6 - Temporary Events
Appendix 1 – The Prevention of Crime and Disorder
Appendix 2 – Public Safety
Appendix 3 – Prevention of Public Nuisance
Appendix 5 – Recommend hours by location
Appendix 6 – Types of premises
Appendix 7 – Major, District and local Town Centres

6. Conclusion:
6.1 Members have three options when determining this Notice,
 To issue a Counter-Notice
 To refuse to issue Counter Notice,
 To impose on the Notice, one or more conditions imposed on the premises
licence that has effect in respect of the same premises.
Appendices:
Annex A – TEN Applications
Annex B – Metropolitan Police Service & Public Protection objection notices
Annex C – Notice giver’s additional information
Annex D – A copy of the premises licence for Canova Hall, 250 Ferndale Road

Reference Documents:
Local Government Act
1972 – Access to
information documents
used in the preparation of
this report

1 The Licensing Act 2003 (“the Act”)
2 Amended Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing
Act 2003 (April 2018) (“the Guidance”)
3 Lambeth Statement of Licensing Policy 2019 - 2024 (“the
Policy”)

Lambeth Council
Lambeth Council, P.O. Box 734, Winchester, S023 5DG
T: 020 7926 1000
E: infoservice@lambeth.gov.uk

Page 113
Ref: DSFX1614875485071

Temporary Event Notice

Personal Details of Premises User
Your Name (please read note 1)
Title *

Mr

First Name *

Darren

Surname *

Rumbelow

Have you been known by any previous names, including a
maiden name? *

No

Personal Details of Premises User
Date of Birth *
Place of Birth *
National Insurance Number *

1/6

Page 114

Ref: DSFX1614875485071

Current Address
We will use this address and contact details to correspond with you unless you specify an alternative correspondence
address.
Street Address *
Address line 2
Address line 3
Town/City *

London

Postcode *
Daytime Telephone Number *
Evening Telephone Number
Mobile Telephone Number
Fax Number
Email Address *
Do you have an alternative correspondence address you
would like us to use? *

No

The Premises
Premises Address

250 Ferndale Road London SW9 8BQ

Does a premises licence or club premises certificate have
effect in relation to the premises, or any part of the premises?
Yes - Premises Licence
If so, please select and enter the Premises Licence Number
or Club Premises Certificate Number.*

Premises Licence
Premises Licence Number *

Prem 2011 PREM/00369/PRMVAR

2/6

Page 115

Ref: DSFX1614875485071

Premises
If you intend to use only part of the premises at this address
or intend to restrict the area to which this notice applies,
please give a description and details. (Please read note 3)

All of bar.

Please describe the nature of the premises. (Please read
note 4) *

Just want to open Saturday hours on the bank holiday
Sunday if possible? I applied last year but we were forced to
close. Any chance I can get my fee back?

Please describe the nature of the event. (Please read note 5)
*

Later opening on a bank holiday Sunday. No special event.

3/6

Page 116

Ref: DSFX1614875485071

Licensable Activites
Please state the licensable activities that you intend to carry on at the premises (please tick all licensable activities you
intend to carry on). (Please read note 6) * More than one can be selected.

✓

The sale by retail of alcohol

The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order of, a member of the club

The provision of regulated entertainment (Please read note 7)

✓

The provision of late night refreshment

Are you giving a late temporary event notice? (Please read
note 8) *

No

Please state the dates on which you intend to use these
premises for licensable activities (Please read note 9). * Start
Date

30/05/2021

End Date

31/05/2021

Please state the times during the event period that you
propose to carry on licensable activities (please give times in
24 hour clock). (Please read note 10) *

We have a licence until 23.30 on the Sunday PM but would
like to open until 02.00 on the Monday morning if possible?

Please state the maximum number of people at any one time
that you intend to allow to be present at the premises during
the times when you intend to carry on licensable activities,
including any staff, organisers or performers. (Please read
note 11) *

200

If the licensable activities will include the sale or supply of
alcohol, please state whether these will be for consumption
on or off the premises, or both (please read note 12). *

On the premises only

Please state if the licensable activities will include the
provision of relevant entertainment. If so, please state the
times during the event period that you propose to provide
relevant entertainment (including, but not limited to lap
dancing and pole dancing). (Please read note 13) *

We may have a resident DJ on this night. TBC depending on
possible COVID restrictions. No special entertainment or live
music however.

Personal Licence Holder
Do you currently hold a valid personal licence? (please read
note 14)*

Yes

4/6

Page 117

Ref: DSFX1614875485071

Personal Licence Details
Issuing Licensing Authority *
Licence number *
Date of issue *
No date on my licence of issue. I got it on "grandfather rights"
when they first came in to play. This is my personal licence
number. The current DPS is Daniel Westaway.

Please provide any further details you think may be relevant.

Previous Temporary Event Notices
Have you previously given a temporary event notice in
respect of any premises, for events falling in the same
calendar year as the event for which you are now giving this
temporary event notice? (please read note 15) *

No

Previous Temporary Event Notices
Have you already given a temporary event notice for the
same premises in which the event period either; ends 24
hours or less before begins 24 hours or less after the event
period proposed in this notice? *

No

Associates and Business Colleagues
Has any associate of yours given a temporary event notice
for an event in the same calendar year as the event for which
you are now giving a temporary event notice? (please read
note 16) *

No

Associates and Business Colleagues
Has any associate of yours already given a temporary event
notice for the same premises in which the event period; a)
ends 24 hours or less before; or b) begins 24 hours or less
after the event period proposed in this notice? *

No

Has any person with whom you are in business carrying on
licensable activities given a temporary event notice for an
event in the same calendar year as the event for which you
are now giving a temporary event notice? *

No

5/6

Page 118

Ref: DSFX1614875485071

Associates and Business Colleagues
Has any person with whom you are in business carrying on
licensable activities already given a temporary event notice
for the same premises in which the event period: a) ends 24
hours or less before; or b) begins 24 hours or less after the
event period proposed in this notice? *

No

Declaration
Please ensure you submit all the information required to support your proposal. Failure to submit all the information required
could result in your notice being deemed invalid. It will not be considered valid until all the information required by the
licensing authority has been submitted. Please read guidance note 17 for further information. I understand that a copy of this
notice will be sent to the chief officer of police for the area in which the premises are situated. I understand that a copy of
this notice will be sent to the local authority exercising environmental health functions for the area in which the premises are
situated. If the premises are situated in one or more licensing authority areas, I understand that the issuing authority will send
at least one copy of this notice to each additional licensing authority. If the premises are situated in one or more police areas, I
understand that the issuing authority will send a copy of this notice to each additional chief officer of police.
It is a condition of this temporary event notice that where the relevant licensable activities described include the supply of
alcohol that all such supplies are made by or under the authority of the premises user. (please read note 18)
The information contained in this form is correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. I understand that it is an offence: (i)
to knowingly or recklessly make a false statement in or in connection with this temporary event notice and that a person is
liable on summary conviction for such an offence to a fine of any amount; and (ii) to permit an unauthorised licensable activity
to be carried on at any place and that a person is liable on summary conviction for any such offence to a fine of any amount,
or to imprisonment for a term not exceeding six months, or to both.
Name of Person Signing *

Darren Rumbelow

Date *

04/03/2021

✓

Declaration Made

Email confirmation
On submission an email confirmation will be sent using the details below
Forename

Darren

Surname /Company Name

Rumbelow

Email *
Telephone

6/6

Page 119
Annex B

AS - Lambeth Licensing & Night
Time Economy Team
Civic Centre, 3rd Floor
6 Brixton Hill,
SW2 1EG
9th March 2021
Contact: PC Mike Constable
Miss Bina Patel
Licensing Manager
Lambeth Borough Council

RE: Objection – Canova Hall, 250 Ferndale Road, SW9
21/00014/TEN – 30th to 31st May 2021
From 2300 to 0200 hours
Capacity – 200
Sale of alcohol and Late Night Refreshments.
Notice of objection under Section 104 (2) of the Licensing Act 2003
Dear Miss Patel.
Notice of objection is hereby given on behalf of the Commissioner of Police for the
Metropolis for the above Temporary Event Notice (TEN) on the grounds:


Prevention of crime and disorder.



Prevention of Public Nuisance.

With regards to London Borough Of Lambeth’s Statement of Licensing Policy 2019 –
2024
‘12.11.
When a TENs is submitted the Authority expects that the following information will be
provided:


A risk assessment and capacity determination;

Page 120

To address the concerns of Covid-19 spreading the Health Protection Regulations 2020
were brought in by the Government.
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2020/684/regulation/5
The MPS are raising this concern as the common law offence of causing a public
nuisance historically, includes the risk of spreading contagious diseases. This is also a
criminal offence.
(For the criminal offence of causing a public nuisance see: R v Rimmington; R v
Goldstein [2005] UKHL 63). 1
There is no mention of how they will manage this with no Covid-19 Risk assessment
provided.
Furthermore there is no information provided on how they will manage their patrons
especially as this will take place in the early hours of the morning. There is the
expectation that due to relaxation in restrictions there will be an overwhelming amount of
people wishing to go out. How will this be monitored and dealt with?
Conclusion
Whilst it is acknowledged that businesses are struggling, we all need to play our part
during this pandemic. There is the reasonable expectation of how this would be
managed.
The increase in hours will facilitate further alcohol consumption, which is believed will
lead to an increase in criminality and anti-social behavior.
The Metropolitan Police Service recommends that TEN is not granted. This will ensure
the full adhering to the Coronavirus Health Protection Regulations 2020. In order to help
reduce the spread of Corona Virus and fully promote the Licensing Objectives.
Yours sincerely,
Mike Constable | PC 1596 AS - Licensing & Night Time Economy Team | Lambeth Borough
Address Civic Centre, 3rd Floor, 6 Brixton Hill, SW2 1EG
1

‐ In reference to Pendulum Pub V West Midlands Police 2020 – Summary Review.
https://www.ftbchambers.co.uk/news/pendulum‐pub‐licence‐revoked‐summary‐review‐
hearing‐breaking‐lockdown‐regulations

Page 121

9th March 2020

Miss Bina Patel
Licensing Manager
Lambeth Borough Council
RE: Objection – Canova Hall, 250 Ferndale Road, SW9
21/00014/TEN – 30th to 31st May 2021
From 2300 to 0200 hours
Capacity – 200
Sale of alcohol and Late Night Refreshments.
Notice of objection under Section 104 (2) of the Licensing Act 2003

Dear Miss Patel.
I write on behalf of the London Borough of Lambeth Public Protection team to make a
representation, on the grounds of the following Licensing Objectives
Prevention of crime and disorder.
Prevention of Public Nuisance.
With regards to London Borough Of Lambeth’s Statement of Licensing Policy 2019 –
2024
‘12.11.
When a TENs is submitted the Authority expects that the following information will be
provided:
A risk assessment and capacity determination;
To address the concerns of Covid-19 spreading the Health Protection Regulations 2020
were brought in by the Government.
The Public Protection are raising this concern as the common law offence of causing a
public historically, includes the risk of spreading contagious diseases.

Page 122

There is no mention of how they will manage this with no Covid-19 Risk assessment
provided.
There is no information provided on how they will manage their patrons
especially as this will take place in the early hours of the morning
.
There is the expectation that due to relaxation in restrictions there will be an overwhelming
amount of people wishing to go out. How will this be monitored and appropriate action be
taken?
Conclusion
We acknowledged that businesses are struggling, we all need to play our part
during this pandemic. There is the reasonable expectation of how this would be
managed.
The increase in hours will facilitate further alcohol consumption, which is believed will
lead to an increase in criminality, anti-social behavior and noise nuisance.
The Public Protection recommends that TEN is not granted.
.

Arif Kokkoz
Public Protection Officer
Public Protection & Regulatory Services
Environment Directorate
Resident Services
London Borough of Lambeth
Civic Centre
6 Brixton Hill
SW2 1EG

Page 123
Annex C

Albion and East
Canova Hall
Safety, Security & Licensing
Policy
Index
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.
12.
13.
14.

Background
Review Periods
Security, search, seizure, arrest and safety
Drugs
Weapons
CCTV
Incident log
Crime scene management
Responsible alcohol retailing
Witness and victim support
Controlled exit and dispersal
Counterfeit bank notes – guidance
Promotions policy
Maintenance & Contractors

Page 124

1. BACKGROUND – SAFETY, SECURITY AND LICENSING
INTRODUCTION
The management at Canova Hall are committed to protecting our
employees, customers and property through creating a safe and secure
environment that is drug, weapon and crime free. The legislation that
governs operating procedures and practice in licensed premises is found in
the Licensing Act 2003.
FOUR OBJECTIVES OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003:
1. The prevention of crime and disorder
2. Public safety
3. The prevention of public nuisance
4. The protection of children from harm
The policy and guide that follow are designed to assist our managers and
their teams in understanding and proactively supporting Safety, Security off
and on our premises
IMPLICATIONS OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003
Police and local authorities have broad powers in ensuring there is
compliance with the Act. Below are some critical points:
• Rights of entry and inspection of licensed premises
• Powers to close premises
• Refusal of service to a person who appears drunk
• Refusal to serve under 18s
Rights of entry and inspection of licensed premises
•
A police officer or authorised Environmental Health Practitioners/Fire
Officer/Health and Safety Officer may at any time enter any premises if
they have reason to believe that the premises are being or about to be
used for a licensable activity.
•
A police officer may enter and search any premises at any time if they
have reason to believe that an offence under the Licensing Act has been
or is about to be committed. No search warrant is required.
•
Customs and Excise officers have the right to enter licensed premises and
remove goods liable to forfeiture. If entry is demanded at night, officers
must be accompanied by a police officer.

2
Canova Hall Policy Version 4
Written By Darren Rumbelow
28.11.17

Page 125

Background Continued……
Power to close premises
•
Senior police officers and Environmental Health Practitioners have the
power to close a premise if:
• They believe that there is disorder at the premises
• Disorder is imminent and closure is necessary in the interests of public
safety
• They believe that a nuisance is being caused by noise from the premises
• They believe there is the production or supply of Class A drugs
• Public nuisance is being caused by noise coming from the premises
(Should you receive a request or be advised to close the premises by a
police officer below the rank of inspector you must first obtain authorization
from Darren Rumbelow.
Refusal of service to a person who appears to be drunk
An offence is committed if a personal license holder or anyone authorised to
sell alcohol knowingly sells alcohol to a person who is drunk or who appears
to be drunk. Other offenses are:
• Serving alcohol to the companion of a person who is drunk for the
drunken person’s consumption
• Allowing alcohol to be sold to a person who is drunk
• Obtaining alcohol for a person who is drunk.
Failure to comply with the above could result in a fixed penalty notice to the
person that served alcohol in any of the above circumstances.
Refusal to serve under 18s
It is an offence to purchase or attempt to purchase alcohol for anyone
under the age of 18 and knowingly allow the sale of alcohol to someone
under 18.
Acceptable forms of ID under current licensing laws are:
• Photo driving license
• Passport
We adhere to the Challenge 25 initiative so if a person looks under 25 they
will be asked for ID.

3
Canova Hall Policy Version 4
Written By Darren Rumbelow
28.11.17

Page 126
2. Review Periods
CORE PRINCIPLES:
•
The General Manager or Operations director should review the below
policy not less than annually
•
Should the premises have a rise in non-serious incidents the policy should
be reviewed.
•
After any serious incident, the policy will be reviewed.
•
At the request of the licencing authority (police or council) the policy
should be reviewed.
•
It is the responsibility of all employees to ensure the implementation of
policy.
•
Albion and East and the DPS will work in partnership with the responsible
authorities to achieve the licensing objectives.

3 . SECURITY, SEARCH, SEIZURE, ARREST AND SAFETY
Security
• All door security will be SIA registered
o Badge status can be checked through the SIA website
www.sia.homeoffice.gov.uk for any member of door staff
who has not previously worked at the venue.
o The full 16-digit badge numbers are to be displayed on
security signing in sheet on arrival.
o Door staff will display SIA badges in a high visibility armband
at all times while on duty.
o The ratio should be as follows on weekend trading sessions.
o 0 – 250 = 2 members of door security
o 250 + customers = 3 members of door security
o More security staff may be employed on event nights or in
accordance with any risk assessment.
Security staff will
• Ensure customers entering and exiting the building do so in a safe and
orderly manner.
•
Ensure security team maintain their allocated stations
•
There will be on evenings with security personnel, a door register at all
times. Such register to include the name, registration number and
agency supplying security team, as well as recording the date, security
duty times, entry refusals and ejection log, such information will be
made available to the police on request.

4
Canova Hall Policy Version 4
Written By Darren Rumbelow
28.11.17

Page 127
Security search seizure continued….
Search
• A random search policy of all customers may be implemented
depending on prevailing conditions, risk assessment or police advice.
• Where a search policy exists, it is our policy to publicise that persons
entering the premises are liable (with their consent) to be searched
and that agreement to search is a condition of entry.
• All searches will be recorded on CCTV.
• Any search or subsequent detainment shall comply with the Human
Rights Act 1998. Persons refusing to consent will be denied entry.
Additionally, the police may be called if drugs or weapons are
suspected or found
Seizure
If drugs or weapons are found during a search the following procedures
will be adhered to:
• The person in possession will be given the opportunity to explain (if
there are any doubts the police should be called).
• The duty manager or DPS must be informed.
• Numbered bags will be used to safely and securely store drugs or
weapons.
• Whenever possible the bag should be sealed and signed in the
presence of the person from whom the drugs or weapons were seized.
• It is good practice to bring the finding to the attention of a colleague
immediately for corroboration.
• Management should never handle drugs without wearing protective
gloves.
• All seizures are to be fully recorded by the CCTV system.
• All seizures are to be entered into the Drugs Register, counter signed by
another member of management / security, sealed in a bag and
dropped into the safe.
• At the earliest opportunity, this should be handed to the police / taken
to the local police station.
• An incident report is to be filled out in full in all circumstances.
Safety
• The DPS will actively participate in any PubWatch scheme where one
exists.
• The capacity of the premises will be advised by the responsible
authorities. A counting scheme will be operated on busy evenings and
this number will not be exceeded.
• The external area shall be regularly checked by SIA door staff when on
duty and staff / glass collection staff in the evenings.

5
Canova Hall Policy Version 4
Written By Darren Rumbelow
28.11.17

Page 128

4. DRUGS
Our seizure is in line with the Misuse of Drugs Act 1971.
Managers and Door staff have a level of discretion when dealing with the
possession of a controlled substance.
Seizure
If any substances are found they should be seized, placed into an evidence
bag, sealed, signed and place into the at the venue. No entry will be
allowed to any person found in possetion of drugs.
It is felt that three (3) or four (4) wraps or pills, or up to two (2) bags of
Cannabis may constitute personal use. More than that may constitute
possession with intent to supply, if a mixture and quantity of controlled
substances is found Police would expect to be contacted. Suspects should
be detained by door staff until Police arrive as long as it is safe for them to
do so.
Retention
A written record will be made in the venue incident book. This will include
Date, Time, Signature of finder, a brief description of the suspect (or a
picture from CCTV) and if in the venue safe signature of the manager.
Collection
An e mail will be sent to police for small amounts notifying them of any
confiscation.

5. WEAPONS
•
•

•

It is our aim to prevent any weapon (guns, knives, CS spray and other
offensive weapons) being taken into our premises.
It is our policy to ensure employees receive training in how to safely
deal with customers who have been identified carrying a weapon
and thereafter the safe storage until the police are notified and take
charge of the scene
Any weapons should be stored within the safe while police are
contacted

Knives
Can only be carried in public if they have a folding blade of less then three
inches, people carrying such a knife commit no offence; however, our
policy is to deny admittance to people carrying these items.
6
Canova Hall Policy Version 4
Written By Darren Rumbelow
28.11.17

Page 129

CS Gas
Although legal in other countries it is classified as a firearm in the UK. Many
tourists carry CS gas for self-defense believing it to be legal. Any CS gas
found should be handled carefully and the police informed.
Offensive Weapons
Adapted articles can be more difficult to detect. Such as sharpened pens,
belt buckles and jewellery. If any of these items give you cause for concern,
then access to the bar should be denied.
Guns
If found during search customers must be denied access and the police
called immediately.
If a gun is found it must be (as far as safely possible) left where it is (it may be
part of a crime scene – see crime scene management). Once the police
have arrived they will take charge of the scene and preserve evidence.
Weapons should not be handled; if unpreventable protective gloves are to
be worn.

6. CCTV
• All managers are to be trained in the operation and usage off CCTV
system.
• A person with understanding in the operation and usage off CCTV system
shall be onsite during trading hours or in extreme cases will be able to
contact a capable operative.
• We will, as deemed appropriate, ensure that CCTV is installed (to
responsible authority requirements) to both interior and exterior areas and
maintain one month’s history of recordings.
• We will ensure CCTV systems are operated in accordance with the Data
Protection Act 1998.
• The CCTV system will be maintained in good working order. Any faults will
be rectified without delay and recorded in the incident log.
• Should there be a delay in repairing the system we will notify the
appropriate authorities.
• CCTV will be operational on a continual 24hr period
• If any CCTV footage is taken from the premises by any of the responsible
authorities a receipt must be obtained and entered into the incident
book.
• CCTV instructions are to be displayed within the vicinity of the CCTV unit

7
Canova Hall Policy Version 4
Written By Darren Rumbelow
28.11.17

Page 130

7. INCIDENT LOG
A register of known incidents that occur on or near the premises will be kept.
This log will include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

All crime reported.
All ejections or barring of patrons
Any complaints received relating to Licensing Policy.
Any incidents or disorders.
Seizure of drugs or offensive weapons and their location.
Any faults on the CCTV.
Any visit by a responsible authority.
Date, time and description of the incident and persons involved (if
known).
The time and date if reported to the police and any follow up
conclusion from the incident.
The register will be available for the police to inspect.
Any CCTV footage given to the police (a receipt must be obtained)

8. CRIME SCENE MANAGEMENT
• In the event of any serious incident taking place we will treat this, the
immediate surrounding area and any other associated area as a crime
scene. The area will be cordoned off and every effort be made to
preserve it.
• All access to the area with the exception of attending to any victim will
be denied. Contact details of witnesses will be taken and suspects
detained if it is safe to do so.
• As soon as it is practicably reasonable management will complete a log
of events in the incident logbook.
*Note There could be more than one crime scene: An example of this would
be if a person were assaulted at the bar (crime scene 1). That person goes
to the toilet to attend to the injury and drips blood (crime scene 2).
Consideration must be given to crowd control and also consider whether or
not all or part of the venue can stay open. Any item, no matter how small
can provide vital evidence. In serious cases it is essential that items such as
cigarette butts and glasses are preserved. Remember that all customers and
staff are potential witnesses.

8
Canova Hall Policy Version 4
Written By Darren Rumbelow
28.11.17

Page 131

9. RESPONSIBLE ALCOHOL RETAILING
It is our intention to ensure we promote an environment of responsible
drinking and support sensible drinking messages.
•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

We operate a Challenge 25 policy, any person who appears to be
under the age of 25 will be asked to provide an acceptable form of
identification (Passport or photo driving license) to prove they are over
18 years old
No alcohol will be dispensed directly into a person’s mouth
Small measures of spirits (25ml) and wine (125ml) shall be available at
all times
Free tap water will be provided at all times.
We operate a strict door policy to refuse entry to any persons who
appear drunk
o Any such refusals by bar staff will be recorded on our till system.
Every effort to ensure any person who is asked to leave the premises is
dealt with and helped in a responsible manner.
Dancing on tables is prohibited
The company will ensure that no promotion of alcohol that could be
deemed irresponsible will be undertaken.

10. WITNESS AND VICTIM SUPPORT
If in incident occurs, we will ensure:
• Appropriate emergency services called in a timely manner if appropriate
• Any witness or victim will be given details of the appropriate support if
appropriate.
• Victims of theft should be given support and assistance in phoning credit
card companies to report theft and cancel their cards.
Generally victims will fall into one of four areas: harassment, drunkenness
theft and drugs. In every instance we will ensure victims are dealt with
sympathetically and in a planned and structured way.
Harassment
To deal with harassment in a professional way, you should do the following:
• See if the person needs any medical attention.
• Take to a private or quieter part of the bar.
• Investigate the incident with all parties concerned.
9
Canova Hall Policy Version 4
Written By Darren Rumbelow
28.11.17

Page 132
• Ask the person responsible for the harassment to leave the premises (call
door team if necessary and available).
• The victim should be helped in every possible way, which may include
arranging a taxi, phoning a friend, relative or colleague.
Drunkenness
The signs to look for are customers talking too loudly, slurring their words,
becoming excitable and possibly unstable on their feet.
The following steps should be taken:
• Avoid victim feeling foolish or embarrassed. Stop alcohol intake
immediately and offer water.
• Ascertain level of comprehension by asking for their name and who they
are with.
• The victim should be helped in every possible way, which may include
arranging a taxi, phoning a friend, relative or colleague.

Witness and Victim support continued….
Theft
If a customer claims they’ve been a victim of theft, you should do the
following:
• Ensure the person is not injured.
• If need be, take them to a quiet area away from the public as the person
maybe visibly upset (if this happens ensure your own safety and possibly
go in twos).
• Give the customer use of a phone so they can call either a friend, family
member or work colleague and call credit card companies and their
bank if need be to cancel any cards.
• The site will hold a list of numbers to assist in this circumstance.
• Make a note of the theft / loss in the lost property log and complete the
report making certain you get all their details.
• The victim should be helped in every possible way, which may include
arranging a taxi, phoning a friend, relative or colleague.
• Advise customer of the local police contact so that they can report the
crime, record the crime number in this instance.
Injury
If a customer or employee is injured in any way through cuts, sprains etc the
level of injuring should be ascertained
• Provision of immediate first aid
• If more serious the ambulance service should be called.
• Accident reports will be completed in all such incident
10
Canova Hall Policy Version 4
Written By Darren Rumbelow
28.11.17

Page 133
Drugs
If you suspect someone of taking drugs ensure your own safety as well as
theirs. The signs of drug taking in general are uncontrollable nodding, can’t
focus their eyes, very slurred speech, erratic or shallow breathing or very
heavy vomiting. If you suspect someone of having taken drugs, ensure the
following steps are followed:
• If the person is conscious ask them or a friend what they have taken.
• The victim should be helped in every possible way, which may include
arranging a taxi, phoning a friend, relative or colleague.
• If unconscious cordon off area and call an ambulance and put person in
recovery position is possible.
• Assign a person to stay with the victim until the ambulance arrives.
• Record all details in the incident book.

12 Dispersal
We will operate a Dispersal Policy which has been formulated to ensure that
the business does not have an adverse impact on neighboring premises,
businesses or residents. We are conscious that Brixton Road is a very busy
road, day and night, with both local businesses and residents in the
immediate vicinity. And that Ferndale Road itself could well be on the way
to the O2 Academy.
If the policy is revised all team and Management will be made aware and
fully trained in any new procedures.
A key element to ensuring that customers behave in a responsible and
socially aware manner as they leave is the way in which they are managed,
whilst they are in our premises and more significantly during their departure.
There are a number of pro-active measures we will exercise towards and at
the end of the evening to encourage the efficient, controlled and safe
dispersal of our customers during our closing period, which are outlined in
our pro-active Dispersal Policy below.
PRO-ACTIVE DISPERSAL
OUR AIM
To ensure the safe, orderly and quiet dispersal of all our customers through
our well trained and well-informed team. At all times our team will be calm,
friendly yet firm when required. They will be well informed with information
about local transport services – where they are located and the operating
times – to ensure all customers not only disperse quietly and effectively but
also get home safely.
11
Canova Hall Policy Version 4
Written By Darren Rumbelow
28.11.17

Page 134
POLICY
1.
2.

3.
4.
5.

6.

7.
8.

9.

10.
11.

At the end of the evening Management and staff (SIA door staff if
on duty) will assist with the orderly and gradual dispersal of
customers.
During the last 30 minutes of opening and after the bar has
stopped serving alcohol, any music will be softer and the volume
reduced gradually to encourage the gradual dispersal of
customers.
During the last 10 minutes of trading the lighting levels will be
increased gradually to encourage the gradual dispersal of
customers.
We will display notices requesting our customers to leave quietly
and in an orderly manner out of consideration to our neighbors.
There will be at least one Manager who will take direct
responsibility for the dispersal at the end of each evening,
dedicating the last 30 minutes of trading to being front of house
ensuring customers are encouraged to leave quietly and in an
orderly fashion. They will work in tandem with the Door Team (if on
duty) to ensure this happens.
Customers will be encouraged to finish their drinks and progress to
the exit, removing all glasses and bottles before they reach the
exit. This gradual dispersal has the aim of ensuring that customers
leave quietly and there are no bottle-necks either at the exit or on
the pavements outside.
During the last 30 minutes of trading, customers will be
encouraged to use the toilets if needed (located in the basement)
Customers who wish to depart by taxi will have access to local taxi
numbers to book their taxi before they leave, and arrange pick up
either at the local taxi office 16 Bedford Road Brixton 0207 720 1331. This
will ensure we minimize taxis drawing up outside the venue, which
allows a clear route for other traffic and disperses customers and
removes potential disturbance for residents.
The Management and Door Team will draw attention of all exiting
customers to the displayed notices encouraging them to leave
quietly and in an orderly manner out of consideration to our
neighbor’s.
The Management and Door Team will actively encourage
dispersal to the local transport links Including the night tube on
weekends. The tube station is a short walk away.
The Management and Door Team will pay particular attention to
actively encouraging movement away from the venue to ensure
there are no bottle necks on the pavement or potential gathering
of persons.

12
Canova Hall Policy Version 4
Written By Darren Rumbelow
28.11.17

Page 135
12.

13.

The Door Team will be employed for 30 minutes after closure to
ensure all customers leave the premises quietly and there is no
congregating outside the venue, and to check the premises in full
for clearance. In the absence of SIA registered door staff this
activity will be undertaken by the manager on duty.
There is full CCTV coverage of the entrance which will run at all
times and carries a 30-day recording period.

WORKING LOCALLY
Albion and East and the Management of the venue will ensure there is a
strong working relationship with the local police guaranteeing complete
awareness and transparency of our policy at all times.
We will attach the utmost importance to the careful investigation and
prompt resolution of any complaint made in respect of the running of the
premises. Emphasis will be placed on building and maintaining close
relationships with neighbor’s. Contact details of the Management team will
always be available to our residential community, and every effort will be
made to handle any complaints in a timely and considerate fashion.
NIGHT BUS
The venue is situated close to public transport that operates 24 hours a day.
Notwithstanding a potential 24-hour tube service in future, the venue is also
very close to a number of Night Bus stops which give access to 24-hour bus
routes in all directions as follows;

13
Canova Hall Policy Version 4
Written By Darren Rumbelow
28.11.17

Page 136

TAXIS
Patrons will be encouraged to hail any black Taxis to side streets for pick up.
Will be moved away from the front of the premises whilst awaiting UBER
arrivals and details of the local taxi company will be provided if necessary.

13. COUNTERFEIT BANK NOTES – GUIDANCE
•
•

All members of staff are to be trained in how to identify counterfeit
bank notes.
The training will ensure that all members of staff fully understand what
to do should they suspect they are in receipt of a counterfeit note,
what to look out for and how to check the note.

Management Action
• Any suspicious bank note is to be retained and placed in a separate
bag in the safe.
• The operations Director is to be notified and the counterfeit currency
collected and either destroyed or handed to our Bank (Barclays)
• Should several notes be taken the local police should be informed
and the notes be handed to them along with any CCTV footage of
those using the currency.

14
Canova Hall Policy Version 4
Written By Darren Rumbelow
28.11.17

Page 137

14. PROMOTIONS POLICY
•

•
•
•

All promotional artwork and plans should be submitted for approval
prior to any event taking place or printing of any artwork – no artwork
may contain images or text that encourage or condone the
irresponsible consumption of alcohol.
No promotion may run if it lowers the price of alcohol to fifty pence or
below per unit. The minimum retail value for 1 unit of alcohol across
our estate is fifty pence with no exceptions.
No alcohol shall be poured directly in to the mouth
Tap water shall be made freely available at no charge for all of our
guests.

Calculating Units
To calculate the units of alcohol in a drink multiply the volume of the drink (in
millilitres) by its percentage and divide by 1000 e.g. 1 pint of beer (568ml) at
4% would be 568*4/1000 = 2.27 units of alcohol.
See www.drinkaware.co.uk for information on products and units of alcohol.
In order to calculate your unit price simply divide the amount of units by the
selling price of the product.
Competitor Analysis
The management will monitor the sale price of alcohol for Tesco and other
supermarket products on occasion. This can be used as a benchmarking
tool when establishing the sale price for any discount product if necessary.

15. MAINTENANCE & CONTRACTORS
•
•

Only nominated central contractors will carry out yearly electrical
inspections, to include fire alarm and emergency lights .
A nominated fire safe company shall be contracted to carry out
yearly fire extinguisher inspections.

Signed DPS_________________________________________________
Print________________
Date______________________
Signed Assistant Manager ___________________________________
Print________________
Date______________________
Signed Manager Other_____________________________________
Print________________
Date______________________
15
Canova Hall Policy Version 4
Written By Darren Rumbelow
28.11.17

Page 138
Signed Head Door________________________________________________________

Print________________

Date______________________

16
Canova Hall Policy Version 4
Written By Darren Rumbelow
28.11.17

COVID19 Site specific risk assessment
Assessment carried out by: Darren Rumbelow
Date of next review: Ongoing Week 1 daily thereafter weekly
Date assessment was carried out: 29/6/20

Please Place a copy of this risk assessment in the staff area. All staff to sign the last page to state they have read and understand the measures
imposed to prevent the spread of COVID19. A brief summary of this RA will be posted on our website for our customers.
Additional Documentation for referral attached - COVID-19 secure guidance for employers, employees and the self-employed 23 June 2020

Risk assessment as per HSE recommended hospitality format.

Page 139

Company name: Canova Hall – Ferndale Road Brixton

General Rules introduced

What action do you need to take to control the Who needs When is the Done
risks?
to carry out action
the action? needed by?
•
•
•

Maximum 12 persons per table
From 2 households max
Tables min 1M apart

Site
Managers all
levels

4th July
onwards

Current PPE Policy

•

For those that wish to wear a mask one will be
provided.
Staff can wear their own mask should they wish.
Gloves will only be worn for cleaning, cutlery or by
chefs where the food preparation requires gloves.
Constant hand washing is essential.

All staff

4th July
onwards

Management
teams / host

4th July
onwards

•

We will hold the details of at least one person on
each booking / table for the purpose of track and
trace should these details be required.
Details to be held for min 21 days.

Current Capacity’s

•
•
•
•

Ladies toilet persons at 1 time_________
Gentleman’s toilet persons at 1 time________
Cellar persons at 1 time____________
Managers office persons at 1 time _________

Management
team at site

4th July
onwards

Bar service

•

Persons may be seated at the bar only 1M apart
minimum.
Customers may not approach the bar to order food
and drinks.

Bar staff
Management
teams

4th July
onwards

Wash hands at least every 20 mins
Sanitise hands before taking any food and drink to
tables.
No embracing / touching / high 5’s
Maintain min 1M distancing from other staff and
customers wherever possible

All staff

4th July
onwards

•
•
•

Track and Trace Policy

•

•

General Instruction to all staff

•
•
•
•

Page 140

Current entry restrictions Summary

What are the hazards?

Who might be
harmed and
how?

What action do you need to take to control the Who needs When is the Done
risks?
to carry out action
the action? needed by?

Virus spread through touch surfaces
including.
Tables

Menus

Staff and customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19

•

Staff and customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19

•

•
•
•

•
•

Only leave menu postcards, coloured disks and
sanitiser on the tables.
Sanitise tables after every guest.
Sanitise tables again on guest arrival.
Hand sanitiser on all tables

Management /
Staff / Host

4th July
onwards

QR menu code on all tables for those that do not
want to touch a menu.
Menus available on request (to be cleaned before
every use)
Hand sanitiser on all tables.

Management /
Staff

4th July
onwards

Staff and customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19

•

Allocated staff member to clean on rotation every
hour during peak periods.

Management /
Staff

4th July
onwards

Door Handles / push handles

Staff and customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19

•

Allocated staff member to clean on rotation every
hour during peak periods.
Hand sanitiser on all tables.

Management /
Staff

4th July
onwards

Staff and customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19

•

Cleaned by 1 person only using new gloves and
boiling water.
Stacked on oval plates or cutlery pots.
Taken to table when required.
Not left on tables / pre set
Hand sanitiser on all tables

Management /
Staff

4th July
onwards

Staff and customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19

•
•

No use of grinders.
Sachets kept in ramekins to be provided on
customer request.
Hand sanitiser on all tables.

Management /
Staff

4th July
onwards

Cutlery

Salt / Pepper / Sugar

•

•
•
•
•

•

Page 141

Bannisters

What are the hazards?

Who might be
harmed and how?

What action do you need to take to control the
risks?

Who needs
to carry out
the action?

When is the
action
needed by?

Cleaned in pot washer and dishwasher above 80
deg.
Sanitation of hands before any item is delivered to
table.
Only touch the rim of each plate and avoid touching
the top section of any glass.
When delivering water to the table discard any
glass which has been touched on the rim.
Wash all water bottles after use in the glass
washer.

Management /
Staff

4th July
onwards

Done

Virus spread through touch surfaces
continued.
Crockery/ Glass wear

Staff and customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19

•
•
•
•
•

Staff and customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19

•

Use the probe wipes to clean down any laptop
before you use it.

Management /
Host / Staff

4th July
onwards

Tills

Staff and customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19

•

Use sanitiser spray to clean the tills in use in every
20 minutes.
Cleaning allocated person to clean all tills on
rotation.
Soap by all handwash sink.
Multiple sanitiser points.

Management /
Staff

4th July
onwards

Use the probe wipes to clean the card machine
before each use at the table Infront of the
customer.
Apple pay increased to £100
Contactless increased to £45
Business to be cashless until further review.
Hand sanitiser on all tables

Management /
Staff

4th July
onwards

•
•
•

Card Machines

Staff and customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19

•
•
•
•
•

Page 142

Laptops

What are the hazards?

Who might be
harmed and how?

What action do you need to take to control the
risks?

Who needs
to carry out
the action?

When is the
action
needed by?

Signage at front entrance to inform all persons of
venue rules.
Host and management teams to ask persons to
keep their distance.
Barriers to control any Q system where
appropriate.
Hand sanitisation point on entry for all persons
entering the premises.

Management /
Staff / Host

4th July
onwards

Signage displayed to remind customers of toilet
restricted capacities.
Q management outside toilets on busy sessions to
maintain distancing.
Hand sanitiser station positioned outside toilet
areas in addition to hand soap inside toilet areas.
Wash hands signage displayed
Toilets checked every 30 mins for soap and
sanitary conditions

Management /
Staff

4th July
onwards

Site plan with narrow pinch points attached to this
RA.
Staff asked to wait when traffic is high in these
areas.
Tables moved to alleviate where possible.

Management

4th July
onwards

Tables to have green and red markers displayed to
show tables in use and tables not in use.
Host to only seat tables where 1M distance is in
place.
All staff to be aware of this system.

Management /
Host

4th July
onwards

Customers shouting or displaying any symptoms
will be approached by a manager only.
Outcome of any interactions recorded in the
COVID19 incident report book.
Music played at lower levels.
No DJ’s to be employed until further notice.

Management
only

4th July
onwards

Done

Virus spread through close proximity
customer to customer
Entry

Customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19

•
•
•
•

Toilets

Customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19

•
•

•
•
Venue pinch points

Customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19

•
•
•

Table proximity

Customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19

•
•
•

Coughing / sneezing / talking loudly

Customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19

•
•
•
•

Page 143

•

What are the hazards?

Who might be
harmed and how?

What action do you need to take to control the
risks?

Who needs
to carry out
the action?

When is the
action
needed by?

Signage at front entrance to inform all persons of
venue rules.
Host and management teams to ask persons to
keep their distance.
Barriers to control any Q system where
appropriate.
Hand sanitisation point on entry for all persons.

Management /
staff / host

4th July
onwards

Staff will take orders from 1M distance.
Optional mask face covering can be worn by the
server.
Use of handheld tills to restrict EPOS system
sharing.
Optional Website QR code menus for the
customer.
Cutlery, salt and pepper and water glasses to be
bought to the table after seating

Management /
Staff

4th July
onwards

Staff will be reminded to be alert to circumstances
when passing customers and other staff in the
venue.
Customers that do not remain seated (except to
visit the toilet) will be approached by a member of
the management team.
Such incidents will be recorded in the COVID 19
incident book.

Management /
staff / host

4th July
onwards

Staff member to keep as much distance as
possible when presenting the card machine.
Probe wipes to be used to clean the machine
before customer use if not contactless.

Management /
Staff

4th July
onwards

Done

Virus spread through close proximity
staff to customer / customer to staff
On arrival / Entry

Staff and customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19

•
•
•
•

Whilst ordering

Staff and customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19

•
•

•
•
Whilst moving around the venue

Staff and customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19

•
•
•

Whilst Paying

Staff and customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19

•
•

Page 144

•

What are the hazards?

Who might be
harmed and how?

Coughing / sneezing / talking

Staff and customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19

What action do you need to take to control the risks?

•
•
•
•

Staff attending workplace with
COVID19 symptoms

Staff and customers.
Contracting or passing
COVID19

What are the hazards?

Who might be
harmed and how?

•

Who needs
to carry out
the action?

When is the
action
needed by?

Management
only

4th July
onwards

Staff displaying or reporting any symptoms must be
sent home immediately for 14-day isolation

Management /
Staff

4th July
onwards

What action do you need to take to control the
risks?

Who needs
to carry out
the action?

Side to side working wherever possible.
Distances maintained 1M wherever possible.
Hand washing thoroughly every 20 minutes as a
minimum.
No embracing or touching of other persons in the
team.
Use separate stations per person.
Use separate tills per person.
Stick to staffroom capacity number.

Bar staff /
Management

4th July
onwards

Distances maintained 1M wherever possible.
Hand washing thoroughly every 20 minutes as a
minimum.
No embracing or touching of other persons in the
team.
Maintain distance of min 1 M whilst waiting to use
the till, collect food or drinks from the dispense
stations or entering the glasswash / pot wash
areas.
Stick to staffroom capacity number.
Clean tills and PDQ equipment before use.

Floor staff /
Management

4th July
onwards

When is the
action
needed by?

Virus spread through close proximity
staff to staff.
Bar

Staff Contracting or
passing COVID19

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Floor

Staff Contracting or
passing COVID19

•
•
•
•

•
•

Done

Page 145

Customers shouting or displaying any symptoms
will be approached by a manager only.
Outcome of any interactions recorded in the
COVID19 incident report book.
Music played at lower levels.
No DJ’s to be employed until further notice.

Done

What are the hazards?

Who might be
harmed and how?

Virus spread through close proximity
staff to staff continued….
Kitchen

What action do you need to take to control the risks?

When is the
action
needed by?

Staff Contracting or
passing COVID19

•
•

Kitchen staff /
KP staff /
Managemnet

4th July
onwards

Limit entry to this area. For capacity see section 1
of RA above.
Ensure hand sanitation facilities and sanitiser in
this area at all times.

All staff

4th July
onwards

Limit entry to this area. For capacity see section 1
of RA above.
Ensure hand sanitation facilities and sanitiser in
this area at all times.

Management

4th July
onwards

Limit entry to this area. For capacity see section 1
of RA above.
Ensure hand sanitation facilities and sanitiser in
this area at all times.

All staff

4th July
onwards

•

Staff Contracting or
passing COVID19

•

Staff Contracting or
passing COVID19

•

Staff attending workplace with
COVID19 symptoms

Staff Contracting or
passing COVID19

•

Staff displaying or reporting any symptoms must be
sent home immediately for 14-day isolation

Management /
Staff

4th July
onwards

General

Staff Contracting or
passing COVID19

•

No phones on shift to prevent screen touching
whilst working.

All Staff

4th July
onwards

Whilst on breaks

Staff Contracting or
passing COVID19

•

Suitable area allocated where distance can be,
maintained.
Wash hands before and after breaks.
Adhere to same dining protocol as per customers.

All Staff

4th July
onwards

Cellar

•

•

•

•
•

Page 146

Side to side working wherever possible.
Wherever possible stick to workstations and
minimise crossover.
Handwashing before and after each food task.
No embracing or touching of other persons in the
team.

Staff Contracting or
passing COVID19

Office

Done

•

•
•

Staff Room

Who needs
to carry out
the action?

What are the hazards?

Who might be
harmed and how?

What action do you need to take to control the risks?

Who needs
to carry out
the action?

When is the
action
needed by?

Done

Bespoke Site-specific additions
*
*
*
*
*
*

*
*

*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*

Page 147

*

What are the hazards?

Who might be
harmed and how?

What action do you need to take to control the risks?

Who needs
to carry out
the action?

When is the
action
needed by?

Done

Additions and amendments to this RA
amendments and additions COVID19
post 4th July
*
*
*
*
*

*
*
*
*
*
*

*
*
*
*

Page 148

*

Staff RA Sign Off Section

Full Name

Sign

I confirm I have read and understand the contents
of this risk assessment – Yes / No

Date

Position

Page 149

Full Name

Sign

I confirm I have read and understand the contents
of this risk assessment – Yes / No

Date

Position

Page 150

Further comments if applicable:

Page 151
London Borough of Lambeth
Licensing Department
3rd Floor, Civic Centre
6 Brixton Hill
London SW2 1EG
Tel: 020 7926 6108
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk/licensing/

Annex D

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence
Premises Licence Number

Version Reference

Prem2011

20/00369/PRMVAR

Part 1 – Premises Details
Postal address of premises including Post Town & Post Code, or if none, ordnance survey
map reference or description
Conova Hall
250 Ferndale Road
London
SW9 8FR
Telephone number
Where the licence is time limited the dates
Licensable activities authorised by the licence
Late Night Refreshment (indoors only)
Sale by Retail of Alcohol

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities
Late Night Refreshment
Sunday - Wednesday
Thursday
Friday & Saturday

23:00 - 00:00
23:00 - 00:00 (01:00 subject to condition 44)
23:00 - 01:00 (02:00 subject to condition 44)

Sale by Retail of Alcohol
Sunday - Wednesday
Thursday
Friday & Saturday

10:00 - 23:30
10:00 - 23:30 (00:30 subject to condition 44)
10:00 - 00:30 (01:30 subject to condition 44)

The opening hours of the premises
Sunday to Wednesday
Thursday
Friday & Saturday

Premises Licence

08:00 - 00:00
08:00 - 00:00 (01:30 subject to condition 44)
08:00 - 01:00 (02:30 subject to condition 44)

A-1

Page 152

Page 153
Annex 1 – Mandatory conditions
(Alcohol - on)
1. No supply of Alcohol may be made under the Premises Licence:
(a)
(b)

At a time when there is no Designated Premises Supervisor in respect of the Premises
Licence; or
At a time when the Designated Premises Supervisor does not hold a Personal Licence or is
suspended.

2. Every supply of alcohol under the Premises Licence must be made, or authorised by a person who
holds a Personal Licence.
3.

The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or
participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.
In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, or
substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol
for consumption on the premises—
(a)
(i)
(ii)

games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or
encourage, individuals to—
drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold
or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the
responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or
drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise)

(b)

provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or
discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a
manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(c)

provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage
or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or
less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing
objective;

(d)

selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or
in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone,
encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of
drunkenness in any favourable manner;

(e)

dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than
where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of
disability).

4. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers
where it is reasonably available.
5. The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age verification
policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.
(1)

The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the
supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.

(2)

The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18
years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request,
before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and

either—
Premises Licence

A-3

Page 154
(a)
(b)

a holographic mark, or
an ultraviolet feature.

6. The responsible person must ensure that—
(a)

where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises
(other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or
supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures—
(i) beer or cider: ½ pint;
(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and
(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml;

(b)

these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is available to
customers on the premises; and

(c)

where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of
be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available.

alcohol to

7. Additional Mandatory Licensing Conditions, Minimum Drinks Pricing:
1.

A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the
premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1
(a) "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979
(b) "permitted" price is the price found by applying the formula - P=D+(DxV) where:
(i) P is the permitted price,
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on
the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added
tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;
(c)
"relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises
licence
(i) the holder of the premises licence,
(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence;
(d)
(e)

"relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club
premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity
which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and
"value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act
1994.

3.

Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be
taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

4.

(1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2
on a day ("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on the next day ("the
second day") as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.
(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol
which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

MANDATORY CONDITIONS - Door Supervision - except theatres, cinemas, bingo halls and
casinos
8.

Where a premises licence includes a condition that at specified times one or more individuals must
be at the premises to carry out a security activity, each such individual must:

Premises Licence

A-4

Page 155

(b)

(a)
be authorised to carry out that activity by a licence granted under the Private
Security Industry Act 2001; or
be entitled to carry out that activity by virtue of section 4 of the Act.

9.

But nothing in subsection (1) requires such a condition to be imposed:
(a)
in respect of premises within paragraph 8(3)(a) of Schedule 2 to the Private Security
Industry Act 2001 (c12) (premises with premises licences authorising plays or films); or
(b)
in respect of premises in relation to:
(i) any occasion mentioned in paragraph 8(3)(b) or (c) of that Schedule (premises being
used exclusively by club with club premises certificate, under a temporary event notice
authorising plays or films or under a gaming licence), or
(ii) any occasion within paragraph 8(3)(d) of that Schedule (occasions prescribed by
regulations under that Act.

10.

For the purposes of this section:
(a)
"security activity" means an activity to which paragraph 2(1)(a) of that Schedule applies,
and, which is licensable conduct for the purposes of that Act, (see Section 3(2) of that Act)
and
(b)
paragraph 8(5) of that Schedule (interpretation of references to an occasion) applies as it
applies in relation to paragraph 8 of that Schedule.

Premises Licence

A-5

Page 156
Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule
1.

The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system. All recordings shall
be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping. Recordings shall
be made available immediately upon request of Police or authorised officer.

2.

The CCTV cameras and recording equipment will be of sufficient quality in all light levels
inside the premises.

3.

Subject to the Data Protection guidance and legislation, the management of the premises
will ensure that key staff are fully trained in the operation of the CCTV and will be able to
download selected footage onto a disk for the Police without difficulty or delay and without
charge to Lambeth Police.

4.

Suitably qualified staff representing the premises will be active members of a Pub Watch
Scheme/Business Improvement District or similar group where there is one in operation.
The current scheme the licensee is to join will be the Business Crime Reduction Programme
(BCRP).

5.

A record shall be kept detailing all refused sales of alcohol. The record should include the
date and time of the refused sale and the name of the member of staff who refused the
sale. The record shall be available for inspection at the premises by the police or an
authorised officer of the Council at all times whilst the premise is open.

6.

An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an
authorised officer of the Council or the Police, which will record the following:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)
(g)

all crimes reported to the venue
all ejections of patrons
any complaints received concerning crime and disorder
any incidents of disorder
all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons
any faults in the CCTV system or searching equipment or scanning
equipment
any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.

7.

The licence-holder shall operate a zero-tolerance policy towards unruly behaviour on the
licensed premises.

8.

The licence-holder shall operate a responsible drinking policy at the licensed premises, and
ensure that staff receive regular and comprehensive training every 6 months in respect of
this policy.

9.

A member of the premises management (whether the DPS or other owner/ manager) must
attend all Police Licensing Forums organised by the local police when invited

10.

Any information regarding crimes committed within the premises, including suspected drug
dealing and violence, should be reported to the police immediately or as soon as is
reasonably practicable.

11.

The premises will have a minimum of two SIA security staff on duty at the premises on
Friday and Saturday from 21:00 hours until 30 minutes after the premises close.

12.

The cellar, alcohol storage units such as the wine store shall remain locked closed during
licensable activities save for the purpose of restocking the sales area or deliveries.

13.

The need for a random search policy of all customers will be risk assessed on a regular
basis or implemented on advice of Police

14.

Substantial food shall be available at all times during the permitted hours

Premises Licence

A-6

Page 157

15.

No super-strength beer, lagers, ciders or spirit mixtures of 6% ABV (Alcohol by volume) or
above shall be sold at the premises, except for premium beers and ciders supplied in glass
bottles.

16.

All staff will be trained to ask customers to leave quietly in the evening when necessary.

17.

There shall be no off sales from the premises after 23:00 hours.

18.

No customers shall be allowed to leave the premises with open alcoholic beverages or to
consume alcohol on the public highway, save for an area owned by the premises
immediately outside where tables and chairs will be located until 23:00 hours and where all
customers shall be seated.

19.

From 23:00hrs, create a designated smoking area to Ferndale Road elevation of the
building. The number of persons permitted to smoke out in this area shall not exceed 15
persons at any one time. This area shall be proactively monitored by staff at all times whilst
in use.

20.

Implement a robust dispersal policy from 23:00hrs to ensure all patrons leave the premises
and vicinity as quietly and speedily as possible. Ensure that patrons are verbally advised by
management/staff upon leaving to be mindful of the neighbouring residents so as not to
disturb the peace.

21.

At the terminal hour of licensable activities, persons who have ordered a cab or are awaiting
a private collection from the premises shall be advised to wait inside the premises until their
transport has arrived.

22.

Routine litter picks shall be undertaken (and at the terminal hours) to the external
perimeters of the premises to remove all discarded litter, drinking vessels, food
waste/packaging and cigarette butts.

23.

There shall be no external emptying of bottle banks between the hours of 23:00 - 07:30hrs
Monday to Sunday.

24.

Management/staff shall proactively monitor the conduct and behaviour of patrons on the
public highway and the external tables & chairs area on Ferndale Road. Engagement to
ensue where customers are deemed to be shouting or engaging in rowdy, anti-social
behaviour to the detriment of residents within the vicinity. Those person(s) shall be asked to
cease this activity and/or disperse from the premises quietly and efficiently.

25.

From 23:00hrs, all furniture within the designated external tables & chairs areas shall be
rendered unusable.

26.

All tables and chairs within the external area shall be removed and placed inside the
premises at closing time Monday to Sunday.

27.

The premises shall prominently display signage informing customers:
(a)
(b)
(c)

to leave quietly and to respect your neighbours;
stating that CCTV is in operation and police have instant access to the
footage;
any person found carrying weapons or illegal drugs will be permanently
excluded and the police will be informed.

28.

All external windows and doors shall be kept closed after 22:00 hours save for egress and
regress.

29.

All tables and chairs within the premises to remain in-situ at all times but can be
changed/altered and moved around as and when required.

Premises Licence

A-7

Page 158

30.

Seating shall be provided for a minimum of 200 persons.

31.

There will be a maximum of 50 standing patrons.

32.

There shall be no more than 250 persons permitted inside the premises.

33.

Management/staff shall proactively monitor the conduct and behaviour of patrons leaving or
entering the premises and in the seated area outside. Engagement to ensure where
customers are deemed to be shouting or engaging in rowdy, anti-social behaviour to the
detriment of residents within the vicinity. Those person(s) shall be asked to cease this
activity and/or disperse from the premises quietly and efficiently.

34.

Public transport should be actively promoted at all times as a primary form of transport to
and from the site. Accordingly, use of private vehicles shall be discouraged. Details of the
tube, rail, bus network and reputable licensed taxi-cab operators to be provided to visitors
upon request.

35.

There shall only be one entrance/exit which is located on Ferndale road, this will exclude
cases of emergency exits.

36.

There shall be a substantial amount of fixed table and chairs on the premises to ensure that
its operation is not that of a nightclub.

37.

The venue will not promote itself to be a vertical drinking establishment.

38.

There shall be no external promoted events operating for this premises unless they have
been approved and authorised by the licensing authority and metropolitan police

39.

There shall be a documented dispersal policy and it must be supplied to the licensing
authority 2 weeks prior to operating under the licence to allow for amendments.

40.

There shall be no licensable activity in the basement area.

41.

A Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where the only
acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification cards, such as a
driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the PASS Hologram.

42.

Children under 16 may be permitted on the licensed premises until 22.00 if accompanied by
an appropriate adult and for the purpose of consuming food on the premises.

43.

Staff shall be given regular briefings every 6 months on current legislation in respect of the
supply of applicable age-restricted products, such as alcohol.

43.

During the hours of operation of the premises, the licence holder shall ensure sufficient
measures are in place to remove and prevent litter or waste arising or accumulating from
customers in the area immediately outside the premises, and that this area shall be swept
and or washed, and litter and sweepings collected and stored in accordance with the
approved refuse storage arrangements by close of business.

44.

The permitted hours may be extended until 1st January 2022 as stated below:
Late Night Refreshment
Thursday
Friday & Saturday
Sale by Retail of Alcohol
Thursday
Friday & Saturday

Premises Licence

23:00 - 01:00
23:00 - 02:00

10:00 - 00:30
10:00 - 01:30

A-8

Page 159

Opening Hours
Thursday
Friday & Saturday

Premises Licence

08:00 - 01:30
08:00 - 02:30

A-9

Page 160
Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority
None

Premises Licence

A - 10

Page 161
Annex 4 – Plans

Premises Licence

A - 11

Page 162
London Borough of Lambeth
Licensing Department
3rd Floor, Civic Centre
6 Brixton Hill
London SW2 1EG
Tel: 020 7926 6108
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk/licensing/

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence Summary
Premises Licence Number

Version Reference

Prem2011

20/00369/PRMVAR

Premises Details
Postal address of premises including Post Town & Post Code, or if none, ordnance survey
map reference or description
Conova Hall
250 Ferndale Road
London
SW9 8FR
Telephone number
Where the licence is time limited the dates
N/A
Licensable activities authorised by the licence
Late Night Refreshment (indoors only)
Sale by Retail of Alcohol

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities
Late Night Refreshment
Sunday - Wednesday
Thursday
Friday & Saturday

23:00 - 00:00
23:00 - 00:00 (01:00 subject to condition 44)
23:00 - 01:00 (02:00 subject to condition 44)

Sale by Retail of Alcohol
Sunday - Wednesday
Thursday
Friday & Saturday

10:00 - 23:30
10:00 - 23:30 (00:30 subject to condition 44)
10:00 - 00:30 (01:30 subject to condition 44)

The opening hours of the premises
Sunday to Wednesday
Thursday
Friday & Saturday

Premises Licence Summary

08:00 - 00:00
08:00 - 00:00 (01:30 subject to condition 44)
08:00 - 01:00 (02:30 subject to condition 44)

B - 12

Page 163

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off supplies
Alcohol may be supplied for consumption both on and off the premises

Name, (registered) address of holder of premises licence
Albion And East Ltd
Hyde Park House
5 Manfred Road
London
SW15 2RS

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where
applicable)
Registered Company Number

08372794

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises the supply or
sale by retail of alcohol
Daniel Westaway

State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited
Restricted

Premises Licence Summary

B - 13

This page is intentionally left blank

